MOSS BROS GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2012/13

Annual Report &
Accounts 2012/13

shop on-line at www.moss.co.uk

14120 Moss Bros Cover + spine (5mm).indd 1

Job No: 14120

Proof Event: 5

Park
Communications
Ltd
Annual Report cover
final.indd
1

Alpine Way

London E6 6LA

12/04/2013 12:41
11:05
10/04/2013

HEADLINES
FINANCIAL
• Group like-for-like* sales, including VAT, up 3.9% (2011/12: up 12.5%)
– Like-for-like* retail sales up 4.1%
– Like-for-like* hire sales up 3.1%
• Pre-tax profit before exceptional items at £3.0m, an increase of £2.1m on the prior year
• EBITDA** of £7.9m (2011/12: EBITDA** of £5.8m), driven by improved sales and tight control over costs
• Underlying*** gross margin significantly improved in the second half to be only 0.2% below last year
(59.5% vs 59.7%), despite raw material cost price pressures
• Strong cash balance of £25.7m (2011/12: £23.3m)
• Exceptional credit of £0.1m comprising compulsory purchase compensation of £1.5m offset by an
additional provision of £1.4m against loss-making stores
• Basic earnings per share, on continuing operations of 2.43 pence (2011/12: 1.63 pence per share). Basic
earnings per share, on continuing operations, before exceptional items, of 2.24 pence per share
(2011/12: 1.63 pence per share)
• Final dividend of 0.7p, total dividend for the year 0.9p, up 125% on the previous year (2011/12: 0.4p)

OPERATIONAL
• Excellent performance from hire, despite a disrupted trading year, impacted by the Royal Jubilee and
the summer’s sporting events
• 14 stores refitted as part of the plan to refit 90 stores over the next five years
• E-commerce sales continue to grow strongly, up 54.3% with a new retail website launched in January
2013 and click and collect now available nationwide

CURRENT TRADING
• We remain confident that the business will achieve market expectations in 2013/14
• Sales in the first seven weeks of the new financial year are slightly below last year’s levels, albeit on
stronger gross margins. Like-for-like* gross profit in the seven weeks to 16 March 2013 is 2.4% below
last year. E-commerce sales are significantly ahead of last year
• Retail sales are on an improving trend following the poor weather conditions at the start of the year
• Hire boookings to date for the 2013/14 wedding season are behind last year’s levels, caused in part
by an increasing trend for bookings to be made later in the season. New initiatives on hire will help
mitigate any shortfall, including new product ranges and a new transactional website planned to launch
in H2 2013/14

*

Like-for-like represents financial information for stores open during both the current and prior financial periods and compares 52 weeks against
52 weeks, except for stores refitted in the period, where the period closed for refit is excluded from both the current and prior financial periods.
Like-for-like Hire sales are calculated on cash receipts in the period, before adjustment for the movement in the level of hire deposits held.

**

EBITDA is earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and exceptional items on continuing activities, and excludes the profit on
disposal of discontinued operations.

*** Underlying represents results before exceptional items as defined in note 1 to the Financial Statements.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
I am pleased to report that we have continued to make good progress this year and this is particularly
encouraging given the tough trading context for UK retailers. With no ‘rising tide’, the Executive team has
focused on a number of self-help initiatives and has, at the same time, continued to maintain a strong
grip on the operational disciplines of the business, delivering growth in both sales and profits ahead of
expectations.
Total like-for-like* sales including VAT reflected a 3.9% increase on the prior year and profit before taxation
and exceptional items was £3.0m (including a net £0.3m credit in respect of provisions for onerous property
lease contracts), compared with a profit before taxation and exceptional items of £0.9m (including a net
£0.4m credit in respect of provisions for onerous property lease contracts) in the previous year. The profit
before taxation, after exceptional items, was £3.1m against £0.9m in the prior year. EBITDA** continued
on a positive trend to £7.9m, compared with £5.8m in the previous year. Confidence in our future trading
position has encouraged the Board to re-introduce the payment of a final and interim dividend.
Actions to improve performance have included strengthening and innovating the product offering with
initiatives like Moss Bespoke (now available in 18 stores), investing in the estate (including 1 new store
opening and 14 refits) and the launch of a new retail website. There is a momentum building in the
rehabilitation of the Moss brand and we are beginning to create interest and footfall across a broad
range of customers. For the first time for a number of years we have invested in several training and
development initiatives, including the sponsorship of high potential young managers through the Oxford
Summer School, an external retail management programme.
In parallel with these actions, the team continues to apply diligent cash and working capital controls and
the business continues debt free, with a strong cash balance.
During the last 12 months, we saw significant changes to the share register with the sale by the Cann
Trust of their stake of 29.9% of the issued share capital of the Company. This was successfully taken up
by a number of ‘blue chip’ investors and resulted in the exit from the Board of Simon Berwin, the Cann
Non-Executive Director representative. We thank him for the valuable contribution he made throughout his
three year term on the Board.
We were delighted to welcome Zoe Morgan to the Board as Non-Executive Director in October 2012.
Zoe brings a wealth of experience in the positioning, development and marketing of consumer brands and
she is already making a strong contribution.
Board membership is now fully compliant with the UK Corporate Governance code.
Throughout the year, our people have continued to work hard, showing a commitment, dedication and
passion to put the customer at the centre of everything we do. We would like to thank them all for their
hard work and contribution to a successful year.
This year we will continue our store redevelopment and multi-channel development. In parallel we will
undertake an extensive customer insight project, to develop a clearer brand proposition for the business,
enabling us to target current, lapsed and new customers in a more defined way.

*

Like-for-like represents financial information for stores open during both the current and prior financial periods and compares 52 weeks against
52 weeks, except for stores refitted in the period, where the period closed for refit is excluded from both the current and prior financial periods.
Like-for-like Hire sales are calculated on cash receipts in the period, before adjustment for the movement in the level of hire deposits held.

**

EBITDA is earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and exceptional items on continuing activities, and excludes the profit on
disposal of discontinued operations.
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The Board is also proposing the payment of a final dividend of 0.7 pence per share to be paid on 27 June
2013 to all shareholders on the register on 7 June 2013 (ex dividend date 5 June 2013). It is our intention to
apply a progressive dividend policy as our performance improves and we will balance this against the wider
trading environment and the investment needs of the business.
In summary, having laid the foundations to leverage the value of the Moss brand and our position as ‘the
UK’s No.1 Men’s Formalwear Specialist for hire, buy and bespoke’, the Executive team is now focused
on bringing further momentum to that growth. We see no easing of market conditions, just a more
competitive environment. Although consumer confidence in the UK continues to be fragile, Moss Bros is
well placed to establish its credentials and to win market share.

DEBBIE HEWITT
CHAIRMAN

9 April 2013
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S BUSINESS REVIEW
OVERVIEW
Moss Bros Group PLC (“the Group”) retails and hires formal wear for men, predominantly in the UK. The
Group operates under the Moss, Moss Bros and Bespoke fascias, through its mainstream stores. The
Group also trades through the premium Savoy Taylors Guild fascia, where there is a historical link in areas
such as the Strand in London.
The Group has continued to make good progress in its turnaround this year, despite continued turbulent
trading conditions. A focus on product, operational delivery and cost control has combined to grow profits
ahead of expectations.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Management monitors progress by reference to a number of key performance indicators (“KPIs”). These
KPIs are applied on a Group-wide basis across all stores and include the following:
• sales, which are further analysed by:
– average transaction value (ATV)
– units per transaction (UPT)
– average selling price (ASP)
• gross profit margins
• inventory turn
• return on capital
These KPIs are assessed against forecasts and the prior year.

RESULTS AND KEY ACTIVITIES
In the 52 weeks ended 26 January 2013, total like-for-like* sales increased by 3.9% (2011/12: 12.5%)
and underlying gross margin performed well, falling by only 20 basis points to 59.5% despite cost price
pressures. Profit before taxation and exceptional items on continuing operations was £3.0m (including a
net £0.3m credit in respect of release of provisions for onerous property lease contracts), compared with a
profit of £0.9m (including a net £0.4m credit in respect of release of provisions for onerous property lease
contracts) in the previous year. The exceptional item in the year comprised two compensation payments
received, totalling £1.9m in respect of the compulsory purchase of the Group’s Stratford distribution centre
and a store in Exeter. £1.5m of this has been included within exceptional items which has been partly offset
by an increase in the onerous lease provision of £1.4m. The £0.4m balance of the compulsory purchase
compensation will be credited to profit in coming years to match depreciation on associated assets.
EBITDA** improved to £7.9m (2011/12: £5.8m).
As at 26 January 2013, the Group had cash balances of £25.7m (2011/12: £23.3m).
The most significant strategic projects this year were the store development programme and the continued
development of our e-commerce platform including the launch of a new retail platform in January 2013.
The objective with the store development project has been to create, pilot and roll-out a new ‘look and feel’
for the business. Early results are positive, with the new flagship store in Regent Street, London providing

*

Like-for-like represents financial information for stores open during both the current and prior financial periods and compares 52 weeks against
52 weeks, except for stores refitted in the period, where the period closed for refit is excluded from both the current and prior financial periods.
Like-for-like Hire sales are calculated on cash receipts in the period, before adjustment for the movement in the level of hire deposits held.

**

EBITDA is earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and exceptional items on continuing activities, and excludes the profit on
disposal of discontinued operations.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S BUSINESS REVIEW
CONTINUED

RESULTS AND KEY ACTIVITIES CONTINUED
a strong visual representation of the brand and our offer. We are planning the roll-out carefully to focus on
leveraging maximum returns from what has been a hitherto underinvested estate.
The objective of the e-commerce project is to provide a fully effective, multi-channel offer to all customers,
offering a number of ways to shop. This project is still at an early stage in its development but the initial
results of our ‘click and collect’ offer launched in January 2013 is showing encouraging results, comprising
20% of online sales to date.
We enter the new financial year with our strongest cash balance for many years and well positioned to
invest in areas of the business that will best sustain and enhance the momentum of our growth in sales
and profit. This strong balance sheet gives us the flexibility to leverage the development in the key areas
described above, which to date have not yet benefited from any significant investment.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
MAINSTREAM RETAIL
There are 101 Moss and Savoy Taylors Guild branded stores (2011/12: 102) and 34 outlet stores
(2011/12: 34) as at 26 January 2013, which trade the Moss own brands of Ventuno, De Havilland,
Blazer, Savoy Taylors Guild, Covent Garden and Moss 1851. These stores also stock selected third party
guest brands including Hugo Boss, Canali, Ted Baker and French Connection, where the store profile
demonstrates a demand for this type of product. The vast majority of the stores also have a Moss Bros Hire
‘store within a store’ operation within them.
We have continued to implement detailed operational reviews in all of these stores, continuing our
programme of streamlining the product range and defining store profiles and then reflecting these in stock
control initiatives. These actions impacted positively on the like-for-like* sales for Mainstream Retail,
which were up by 3.3% on the previous year (2011/12:12.3%). The margin performance was enhanced by
consolidation into fewer suppliers and the gradual move to direct supply from factories in the Far East.
The number of loss-making stores reduced during the year and we have taken a further provision against
2 stores which are likely to remain loss-making for the remainder of their lease terms. 49% of our property
leases expire within the next 36 months and there will be opportunities to improve terms on renewal in
some cases. The average lease length across the store portfolio is 45 months, giving flexibility in face
of what we anticipate will be a fast changing retail landscape. Unlike many high street retailers who are
looking to actively reduce their store footprint, the underpin of Hire and the demand for e-commerce
‘click & collect’ and ‘click & return’ points, together with advantageous lease deals, means there is an
opportunity to expand our store footprint on a selective and cost effective basis.
We opened 1 new store in the year, as planned and although we currently have one confirmed store
opening in the next 12 months, it can be viable for us to make healthy returns on sites where other men’s
formalwear competitors might struggle, due to the scale and operational efficiencies achieved from the
hire fascia. We will therefore take advantage of any such windfall sites as and when they become available,
as long as the commercial risks and returns make sense.
In parallel with operational improvements, we have continued to review the positioning of the Moss brand
with current and potential customers and the overall perceived value of the offering. The concept of Moss
for Hire, Buy or Bespoke underpins our market position as ‘the UK’s No.1 Men’s Formalwear Specialist for
hire, buy and bespoke’.

*
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Like-for-like represents financial information for stores open during both the current and prior financial periods and compares 52 weeks against
52 weeks, except for stores refitted in the period, where the period closed for refit is excluded from both the current and prior financial periods.
Like-for-like Hire sales are calculated on cash receipts in the period, before adjustment for the movement in the level of hire deposits held.
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The Moss Bespoke concept is a good example of leveraging our core capability in suits into a new and
growing segment of high quality, affordable, bespoke suits for a more mass market. Not only does it add
‘theatre’ to the Moss offering, it sits well with the hire offer as an alternative for occasions like weddings.
It also enhances our reputation for quality and value for money and provides an opportunity to improve
the footfall and sales densities in our larger stores. We have also successfully opened another 12 ‘store
within store’ Moss Bespoke outlets in other core Moss Retail Stores during 2012/13 as part of the store
refurbishment programme. Bespoke is now available in 18 stores across the country and the plan is for
8 more to be added in 2013/14.
We continue to develop the positioning of the brand, and to that end, are about to undertake customer
research through a survey covering current, lapsed and potential customers. Our hypothesis, informed by
current feedback, is that the brand continues to have tremendous heritage value but that we need to build
our following with younger and more affluent customers, who are looking for stylish products and value for
money. The results of the research will be available in mid 2013 and will be used to test the hypothesis and
help us to prioritise the focus of our marketing activities.
As well as improving the brand positioning and product offering, the team is well underway with the
implementation of the project to modernise the look and feel of core Moss stores. We now have 19 ’new
look’ stores, including new store openings, relocations or refits. The wider implementation programme
is being prioritised and coordinated with lease renewals so as to secure the best possible terms before
committing expenditure. Because of the extent of the under investment in the core estate, most of which
has not had basic maintenance and improvements for a number of years, we will balance the new refit
with a care and maintenance programme to bring all of the estate up to at least a basic minimum level of
presentation.
We are planning 21 full refits and 3 maintenance upgrades in 2013/14.

HIRE
Moss Bros Hire is the market leader in the UK hire market and the number one recognised name for hire.
We have 131 Moss Bros Hire outlets as at 26 January 2013 (2011/12: 131); all contained within core Moss
Retail and Savoy Taylors Guild Stores.
In spite of a disrupted trading period, impacted by the Royal Jubilee and the Olympics, we grew our sales in
2012/13. The considerable strength of our nationwide offering and the quality of our service has delivered
a like-for-like* sales increase of 3.1% (2011/12: 10.1%). This has been driven in part by strong demand for
eveningwear and the emerging School Proms market.
We will continue to leverage the opportunities to grow our market share through new distribution channels
including the introduction of our new transactional internet site, planned to launch in H2 2013/14 and the
continued growth of the School Proms hire market. New product areas such as the Ted Baker morning
suit, to be launched in May 2013 and continued investment in hire stock bode well for the future. Moss Bros
Hire also offers one of the most significant opportunities to develop our retail offering by leveraging the rich
source of customer data that comes from our customers, many of whom are currently unaware of, or do not
consider the Moss Retail offer. We believe the opportunities for CRM, in the context of a multi-channel offer,
are significant.
Bookings for morning wear in the first seven weeks of 2013/14 have been below last year’s levels due in
part to customers booking later in the season than is the norm. Eveningwear continues to perform well.

*

Like-for-like represents financial information for stores open during both the current and prior financial periods and compares 52 weeks against
52 weeks, except for stores refitted in the period, where the period closed for refit is excluded from both the current and prior financial periods.
Like-for-like Hire sales are calculated on cash receipts in the period, before adjustment for the movement in the level of hire deposits held.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S BUSINESS REVIEW
CONTINUED

E-COMMERCE
Moss.co.uk progressed well in the year, with sales up 54.3% on the previous year, albeit still from a low
base. We recruited an e-commerce Director in May 2012 to lead this activity and exploit what we believe
is a significant opportunity illustrated by the fact that online participation in 2012/13 was only 2.1% of
total retail sales. The project to transform Moss IT systems to accommodate trading in a multi-channel
environment commenced in 2012 and is expected to be completed in H2 2013/14. A new retail platform
was launched in January 2013, including nationwide ‘click and collect’ and has seen a 50% increase in
the buying conversion rate from visitors to the site since launch. A transactional hire website is planned
to launch in H2 2013/14. Investment in infrastructure will continue in 2013/14 and will include the
establishment of the necessary systems, processes and support frameworks required. In 2013/14 capital
expenditure of £0.9m (2012/13: £0.2m) is planned together with an increase in infrastructure overhead of
£0.5m to provide the capability and resource to support the expected growth in this area. We are developing
a suite of both financial and non-financial measures for our activity in e-commerce and that will allow us
to maximise our returns on the investment.
In the longer term, a significant opportunity is the introduction of a comprehensive and fully integrated
CRM programme, encompassing our “Hire, Buy and Bespoke” offering.

COSTS
Costs remain tightly controlled and with the recovery in sales underway, the focus has shifted to process
efficiencies, enabling us to further simplify the business.
In view of the plans to refit a substantial number of the Group’s stores over the next four years, an
additional charge of £0.5m has been taken in 2012/13 to reflect accelerated depreciation on existing
fixtures and fittings in those stores, so that the value of fixtures and fittings replaced on refit will be written
off by the date of the refit.
The company’s phasing date for pensions auto enrolment is October 2013 and implementation costs
are expected to be minimal. The cost of employer contributions will depend on the level of employee
participation but costs are not expected to be significant in 2013/14.

SUPPLY CHAIN
The buying team continually assesses supplier performance, to ensure the most commercially beneficial
results for the Group. Over the last few years, we have shifted the emphasis of our product supply from
mainland Europe to China and achieved a better buying margin as a result, whilst also improving the
quality of our products. The timely ordering of inventory has allowed much greater scope for tactical
promotions. This has increased our exposure to foreign exchange risk which is mitigated by the adoption of
hedge accounting in the current year.

DISTRIBUTION CENTRE
The efficiency of the Group’s distribution centre continues to be a focus, particularly planning and
managing the impact of an increased level of activity created by growing e-commerce sales. This will be a
key activity in the coming year.

PEOPLE
The need for talented and committed people across all areas of the Group requires a continuing focus on
effective recruitment, induction, performance management and training.
For the first time this year, we have committed to the sponsorship of high potential young managers
through the Oxford Summer School, an external retail management programme, creating an internal
talent pool to provide succession options.
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In addition, the Board has been further strengthened by the appointment of Zoe Morgan as an Independent
Non-Executive Director.
We introduced a Save As You Earn Scheme (SAYE) during the year, so that all of our people have the
opportunity to benefit from continued growth of the business and more reasons to stay and develop their
career with the Group.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
CASH AND FUNDING
Cash balances are managed and monitored on a daily basis and the peaks and troughs in the cash
cycle are well known. We continue to operate the business from a debt free position and current trading
levels generate a healthy cash flow which has been offset by investments in the stores. Nevertheless,
the significant underinvestment in the store estate over the last few years does mean that we will need
to incur capital expenditure, both to modernise the look and feel of the stores and to meet more routine
maintenance that has been deferred for many years. The returns from this activity will be very closely
monitored.

INVENTORY AND CONTINUITY OF SUPPLY
Demand forecasting and stock ordering and intake are aligned to maximise sales and to minimise capital
investment. The placing of all orders is subject to product demand forecasting models and reflects ongoing
rates of sale of all product lines.
The consolidation of product buying into fewer suppliers creates sufficient scale to mitigate the risk of the
suppliers going out of business in the short to medium-term. Negotiations take place regularly with key
suppliers regarding rate and payment terms. We are also exploring opportunities for direct supply, where
appropriate.
Increases in raw material prices and fluctuation in currency rates could be considered a risk factor for the
Group however management has mitigated this risk as a significant proportion of inventory prices have
been agreed with the suppliers, and forward currency contracts taken out for the 2013/14 financial year,
although this remains closely under review.
The Hire business demands the highest level of customer service and this is delivered through a highly
developed and efficient infrastructure which enables consistent ‘delivery to promise’. Any disruption to this
infrastructure would affect our ability to maintain customer service levels. Plans have been put in place to
mitigate any issues in this area.

PROPERTY
The business operates from a portfolio of high street, shopping centre and factory outlet stores all held
under operating leases. Each store is evaluated annually to assess its ongoing commercial viability.
Given the importance of optimising the Group’s property portfolio, the Group has increased its in-house
managing resource in this area in order that opportunities for the development of its store portfolio are
maximised. All opportunities are rigorously evaluated both operationally and financially before renewals
are signed and/or new lease acquisitions are made.

RECRUITMENT AND RETENTION
Attracting and retaining high calibre people is a key priority and a central focus in striving for excellent
customer service across the Group’s business channels. People development continues to be improved so
that the Group can take full advantage of the recovery in its performance.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S BUSINESS REVIEW
CONTINUED

FINANCIAL REVIEW
2012/13

2011/12

3.9%

12.5%

% Gross margin

59.5%

59.7%

% Gross margin v last year

–0.2%

+1.0%

EBITDA** before exceptional items

£7.9m

£5.8m

Profit before taxation and exceptional items

£3.0m

£0.9m

Profit before taxation and after exceptional items

£3.1m

£0.9m

CONTINUING TRADING RESULTS
Like-for-like* sales including VAT v last year

*

Like-for-like represents financial information for stores open during both the current and prior financial periods and compares 52 weeks
against 52 weeks, except for stores refitted in the period, where the period closed for refit is excluded from both the current and prior
financial periods. Like- for-like Hire sales are calculated on cash receipts in the period, before adjustment for the movement in the level of
hire deposits held.

**

EBITDA is earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and exceptional items on continuing activities, and excludes the profit
on disposal of discontinued operations.

The improvement across the business continued in 2012/13 with strong like-for-like* sales growth and
resilient performance. Gross margin significantly improved in the second half to be only 0.2% below last
year (59.5% vs 59.7%), despite raw material cost price pressures.

REVENUE
The operational improvements increased the overall results for the period. The core Moss Retail and Hire
businesses including Outlets, performed well with like-for-like* sales up 4.1% and 3.1% respectively.

GROSS MARGIN
Underlying gross margin has decreased by 20 basis points, less than anticipated, as raw material cost
pressures eased in the second half of the year and lower levels of discounting were incurred. This was
a consequence of closer alignment of the product offer to customer needs and despite considerable
promotional pressure from our competitors who sacrificed gross margin to attract sales.

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS ON CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Two compensation payments totalling £1.9m were received in the year in respect of compulsory purchase
of the Group’s Stratford distribution centre and a store in Exeter. £1.5m of this has been included within
exceptional items. The £0.4m balance will be credited to profit in coming years to match depreciation on
associated assets.
Following a reassessment of onerous property lease contracts an additional provision for onerous property
lease contracts has been made under IAS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’
of £1.4m in respect of 2 loss-making stores. The additional provision represents the net present value
of additional projected losses for each store, until the end of lease, as the Directors believe there is no
realistic prospect of achieving lease surrender for an amount less than that provided. The provision for
onerous property leases totalled £3.2m at 26 January 2013. No impairments have been made to assets
during 2012/13 (2011/12: none).

*

Like-for-like represents financial information for stores open during both the current and prior financial periods and compares 52 weeks against
52 weeks, except for stores refitted in the period, where the period closed for refit is excluded from both the current and prior financial periods.
Like-for-like Hire sales are calculated on cash receipts in the period, before adjustment for the movement in the level of hire deposits held.

10

I MOSS BROS GROUP PLC shop on-line at www.moss.co.uk

Job No: 14120

Proof Event: 5

Customer: Moss Bros

Project Title: Report & Accounts 2012/13

Park Communications Ltd

Alpine Way

T: 0207 055 6500

London E6 6LA
F: 020 7055 6600

Other exceptional adjustments in the prior years related to re-organisation costs in connection with the
review of the cost base of the business. There were no exceptional costs of a similar nature in the current
year.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share, on continuing operations, after exceptional items was 2.43 pence compared
to 1.63 pence per share last year. Diluted earnings per share, on continuing operations, after exceptional
items was 2.33 pence compared to 1.53 pence per share last year.
Basic earnings per share, on continuing and discontinued operations, was 2.43 pence compared to
7.27 pence per share last year. Diluted earnings per share, on continuing and discontinued operations,
was 2.33 pence compared to 6.81 pence per share last year.
Basic earnings per share, on continuing operations, before exceptional items was 2.24 pence per share.
Diluted earnings per share, on continuing operations, before exceptional items was 2.15 pence per share.

DIVIDEND
Given the excellent progress made in 2012/13 and the exciting prospects for further growth, the Board
feels it is appropriate to propose the payment of a final dividend of 0.7p per share (2011/12: 0.4 pence)
bringing the total for the year to 0.9p per share, an increase of 125% over the prior year. The final dividend
to be paid on 27 June 2013 to all shareholders on the register as at 7 June 2013 (ex dividend date 5 June
2013).

INVESTMENT
Total capital expenditure in the year was £5.5m (2011/12: £3.0m) and depreciation was £5.1m (2011/12:
£5.1m). This included the opening of 1 new store and the refurbishment of 14 stores. The total capital
expenditure included further investment in new Moss Bros Hire inventory of £1.4m (2011/12: £0.8m), whilst
depreciation on hire inventory was £0.9m (2011/12: £0.9m).

CASH
The year end cash balance was £25.7m compared to £23.3m last year.

INVENTORY
The mix of inventory in the business was re-geared during the year to ensure sufficient inventory is
available to support sales across the business.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
The terms and conditions with our suppliers are reviewed and adjusted so as to maximise the average
cash balance whilst improving the product gross margin.

OUTLOOK
We continue to make good progress and to bring momentum to the growth in profit in spite of tough
trading conditions. During 2013/14 we will continue the roll-out of the store development programme and
the development of our e-commerce multi-channel offering. In parallel, we will undertake a customer
insight project, to develop a clearer brand proposition for the business, enabling us to target customers in
a more defined way. Further opportunities for growth are well supported by our strong balance sheet.
The operational trends in the business are moving in the right direction and, although trading in the first
seven weeks of 2013/14 is slightly below last year’s levels, we remain confident that the business will
continue to make good progress in 2013/14 and meet market expectations.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S BUSINESS REVIEW
CONTINUED

As a reflection of the Board’s confidence in the business, I am pleased to report that the Board will be
recommending to its shareholders the payment of a significantly increased final dividend of 0.7p per share
(2011/12: 0.4p), a total of 0.9p per share (2011/12: 0.4p).

BRIAN BRICK
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

9 April 2013

12

I MOSS BROS GROUP PLC shop on-line at www.moss.co.uk

Job No: 14120

Proof Event: 5

Customer: Moss Bros

Project Title: Report & Accounts 2012/13

Park Communications Ltd

Alpine Way

T: 0207 055 6500

London E6 6LA
F: 020 7055 6600

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DIRECTORS
Debbie Hewitt MBE (50) Non-Executive Chairman. Joined the Board on 1 June 2009 as an Independent
Non-Executive Director and became Non-Executive Chairman on 27 April 2010 (acting Chairman from
25 March 2010). She is also Non-Executive Chairman of Evander Group and a Non-Executive Director of
HR Owen plc, NCC Group plc, Redrow PLC, Domestic and General and BGL Group. She was previously the
Managing Director of RAC plc.
Brian Brick (52) Chief Executive Officer. Joined the Board as an Independent Non-Executive Director on
1 September 2008 and was appointed Chief Executive on 19 March 2009 having been acting Chief Executive
since 19 January 2009. He is a Director of Ambleside Consulting Limited and Capewalk Limited. He
successfully sold Speciality Retail Company Limited in 2005.
Robin Piggott (55) Finance Director. Joined the Board on 28 June 2010 as Finance Director. He joined
Alexon Group plc in 1987 holding a variety of financial and commercial roles and becoming Finance
Director in 1995. Prior to this he held senior financial roles at Granada Group plc and Geest Industries plc.
Maurice Helfgott (45) Senior Independent Non-Executive Director. Joined the Board on 19 October 2010
as Senior Independent Non-Executive Director; he also chairs the Remuneration Committee. He is the
Founder Director of Amery Capital, Chairman of both Oliver Sweeney Trading Ltd, and Long Tall Sally and
a Director of SpaceandPeople plc. He was previously a main Board Director of Marks & Spencer plc, and
formerly Executive Director of Menswear.
Bryan Portman (64) Non-Executive Director. Joined the Board on 1 July 2011, he also chairs the Audit
Committee. Bryan has been Finance Director of a number of retail and Financial Services businesses.
His most recent executive role was as Chief Financial Officer of the Co-Operative Group and prior to
joining the Co-Operative Group was Chief Executive at Britannic Group plc. Before that he held senior
management and financial roles within Lloyds TSB Group plc and Safeway plc. He is also Chairman of
Family Action charity.
Zoe Morgan (49) Non-Executive Director joined the Board on 1 November 2012. Zoe is very experienced
in marketing branded companies and has been Marketing Director of a number of significant retail,
consumer and Financial Services businesses. Her most recent executive role was as Group Marketing
Director of the Co-Operative Group for 4 years. Prior to joining the Co-Operative Group she was Marketing
Director at Boots plc and HBoS. She has a broad commercial background in multi-site, retail businesses,
with a strong skill set in strategy, brand management, CRM and multi-channel retailing.
AUDIT COMMITTEE
OF THE BOARD

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
OF THE BOARD

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
OF THE BOARD

B Portman (Chairman)

M Helfgott (Chairman)

D Hewitt (Chairman)

D Hewitt

D Hewitt

S Berwin (until 29 May 2012)

M Helfgott

B Portman

M Helfgott
Bryan Portman
Zoe Morgan
(from 1 November 2012)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The Directors of Moss Bros Group PLC present their Annual Report & Accounts and audited financial
statements for the period ended 26 January 2013. The Group is also required to set out in this report a
review of the business of the Group during the period ended 26 January 2013 and of the position of the
Group at the period end together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing it.
The information which fulfils these requirements can be found in the Chairman’s Statement, the Chief
Executive’s Business Review and the Directors’ Report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Group during the year was the retail sale and hire of quality clothing
and ancillary goods. A summary of the results for the period ended 26 January 2013 together with
comparatives is shown below. A detailed review of the Group’s activities and the results are included in the
Chief Executive’s Business Review.
52 weeks to 26 January 2013
2011/12
Exceptional
Underlying***
items
Total
Total
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue
Operating profit
Other gains and losses
Net financial costs
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

104,600

887

105,487

101,151

2,732

131

2,863

977

2
246

–
–

2
246

(22)
(55)

2,980

131

3,111

900

(776)

Taxation (charge)/credit
Profit from continuing operations after taxation

2,204

50
181

(726)

643

2,385

1,543

*** Underlying represents results before exceptional items as defined in note 1 to the Financial Statements

DIVIDENDS
Given the excellent progress made in 2012/13 and the exciting prospects for further growth the Board feels
it is appropriate to propose the payment of a final dividend.
A dividend of 0.7 pence per share is proposed to be paid on 27 June 2013 to all shareholders on the register
as at 7 June 2013 (ex dividend date 5 June 2013) and in line with the Board’s policy, will be monitored to
ensure we achieve robust dividend cover over time.

SHARE CAPITAL
The Company has 99,311,580 ordinary shares of £0.05 in issue as at 26 January 2013. There are no
restrictions on the size of individual holdings or on the transfer of these shares or on the voting rights
attached to them. Each share carries the right to one vote at a general meeting of the Company.
Section 992 of the Companies Act 2006 ‘‘the Act’’, which implements the EU Takeovers Directive, requires
the Group to disclose certain information. These requirements are dealt with elsewhere in the Annual
Report and Accounts, however, the following additional disclosures are required.
The Board of Directors is responsible for the management of the business of the Group and may exercise
all the powers of the Group subject to the provisions of the relevant statutes, the Company’s existing
Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association (‘‘the existing Articles’’). The existing Articles
contain specific provisions and restrictions regarding the Company’s power to borrow money. Powers
relating to the issuing and buying back of shares are also included in the existing Articles and such
authorities are renewed by shareholders annually at the Company’s Annual General Meeting.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
The Group had been notified of the following significant shareholders and interests in shares of the Group
in March 2013, pursuant to Section 793 of the Act:
Number of
shares

% of voting
rights and issued
share capital

9,903,183
9,494,200
9,125,000
5,526,620
4,600,000
3,555,239
2,970,000

9.97
9.56
9.19
5.56
4.63
3.58
2.99

Fidelity Worldwide Investment
SFM UK Management LLP
Legal & General Investment Management
BlackRock Investment Mgt (UK)
Schroders Investment Management Limited
Nomura Asset Management UK Limited
Henderson Global Investors

The Group is not aware of any agreements between holders of these shares which may result in
restrictions on the transfer of securities or voting rights.
No person holds shares with specific rights regarding control of the Company.
The Company currently does not operate any employee share schemes in relation to which there are
shares with rights with regard to the control of the Company.
There are no agreements between the Company and its Directors or employees which provide for
compensation for loss of office or employment which occurs because of a takeover bid.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The Resolutions to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting which will be held on 5 June 2013, together
with explanatory notes, appear in the Notice of Meeting sent to all shareholders with a Form of Proxy.
The following Resolutions will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting as Special Resolutions:
(a)

Dis-application of pre-emption rights – authorise the Directors of the Company to issue equity
securities of the Company for cash without first offering them to existing shareholders.

(b)

Authority to buy in shares – authorise the Directors of the Company to make market purchases of the
Company’s shares.

(c)

Notice of Meeting – approve the calling of a general meeting of the Company on not less than 14 clear
days’ notice.

The Directors are of the opinion that all the Resolutions to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting are
in the interests of the Company’s Shareholders as a whole and for reasons explained within this Annual
Report and the Notice of Meeting they recommend Shareholders to vote in favour of the Resolutions to be
proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

DIRECTORS
The current Board of Directors is shown on page 13 of this Annual Report.
Zoe Morgan was appointed as Non-Executive Director on 1 November 2012.
Simon Berwin resigned as Non-Executive Director of the Company on 29 May 2012.
Brian Brick, Robin Piggott, Debbie Hewitt, Bryan Portman and Maurice Helfgott served as Directors
throughout the period.

MOSS BROS GROUP PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2012/13 I

Job No: 14120

Proof Event: 5

Customer: Moss Bros

Project Title: Report & Accounts 2012/13

Park Communications Ltd

Alpine Way

T: 0207 055 6500

15

London E6 6LA
F: 020 7055 6600

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
CONTINUED

Appointments to the Board are recommended by the Nominations Committee and are made in accordance
with the provisions of the Articles. In line with best practice, all Executive Directors and Non-Executive
Directors have offered themselves for re-election by the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.
The Board confirms that, following a review of the skills and experience of the Directors it is satisfied
that Maurice Helfgott, Bryan Portman and Zoe Morgan remain independent of the management of the
Group. The Board also considered the Chairman, Debbie Hewitt as having the attributes of an independent
Director.
During the year the Group maintained liability insurance for its Directors and Officers, which remains in
force at the date of this report.
In accordance with the Act, Conflicts of Interests provisions which came into force on 1 October 2008, a
Register of Conflicts has been established. The Group’s existing Articles give the Directors authority to
approve a Director’s conflict or potential conflict of interest.
The interests of the Directors in the ordinary shares of the Group on 26 January 2013 were:

Debbie Hewitt
Brian Brick
Robin Piggott
Maurice Helfgott
Bryan Portman
Zoe Morgan

Number of shares at
26 January 2013

Number of shares at
28 January 2012

715,756
2,219,153
258,213
80,000
80,000
12,449

715,756
373,000
88,260
80,000
80,000
nil

No Director has any interests in the shares of any subsidiary undertaking. There has been no change in the
beneficial interests held by the Directors since the balance sheet date. No other Directors have interests in
the Group.
Brian Brick and Robin Piggott also participate in the Group’s Long-Term Incentive Plan. Details are set out
in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 23 to 31.

EMPLOYEES
Employment policies do not discriminate between employees or potential employees on the grounds of
gender, colour, race, nationality, ethnic origin, national origin, religion, religious beliefs, sexual orientation
or age. It remains the Group’s policy to give full and sympathetic consideration to the employment, training,
career development and promotion of disabled employees. Special consideration is given to the continuity
of employment of any employee becoming disabled after their employment has commenced and, where
practicable, to the provision of alternative employment.
The Group recognises the benefits of keeping employees informed of the progress of the business and of
involving them in the Company’s performance. During the period, employees were provided with information
about the Group’s performance and on other matters of concern to them as employees through telephone
conference calls, newsletters, notice boards, reports, team briefings and conferences.

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY
The Board recognises its responsibilities in respect of social, environmental and ethical (“SEE”) matters
with the Chief Executive Officer having overall Board responsibility for Group Environmental Management.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY
The Group does not operate in a business sector which gives rise to significant pollution but the Board
recognises that the business could have an impact on the environment. The Board is committed to
managing and improving the ways in which its activities affect the environment.

SUPPLIER PAYMENT POLICY AND PRACTICE
It is the Group’s policy to pay its suppliers in accordance with the terms of trade agreed at the time of order
with each supplier or to ensure that the supplier is made aware of the Group’s standard payment terms.
The Group’s and the Company’s average credit payment period at 26 January 2013 was 19 days (28 January
2012: 21 days).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
During the period £335 (2011/12: £1,000) was donated to charities. No political donations were made
during the period (2011/12: £nil).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
The Group is committed to the principles of corporate governance contained in the UK Corporate
Governance Code that was issued in 2010 by the Financial Reporting Council (“the Code”) for which the
board is accountable to shareholders.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE UK CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
Throughout the year ended 26 January 2013, the Board confirms that the Group has been in compliance
with the provisions set out in the 2010 UK Corporate Governance Code (“the Code”).

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
The Board has a wide range of responsibilities and my overall objective is to ensure that the Board has
the right mix of skills and experience to leverage the opportunities and overcome the challenges that the
Company faces and that it works effectively as a team to identify, prioritise, communicate and review the
delivery of the goals of the Company. We ensure that there is the right mix of enquiry and support to the
Executive Directors from the Non-Executives.
The Non-Executive Directors discuss and agree the strategy with the Executive Directors and hold the
Executives accountable for its execution; secondly we ensure that we have the most talented team to
execute this strategy; and thirdly we set the tone for governance.
The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance, specifically ensuring
that we send out consistent messages on the core values of the Company and acceptable behaviours. We
have made good progress in achieving best practice and we regularly review the context, progress and
maintenance of these standards, for the benefit of all of our stakeholders.

STATEMENT ABOUT APPLYING THE PRINCIPLES OF THE CODE
The Company has applied the principles set out in the Code, including both the main principles and
the supporting principles, by complying with the Code as reported above. Further explanation of how
the principles have been applied is set out below and in the Directors’ Remuneration Report and Audit
Committee Report.

THE ROLE OF THE BOARD
At 9 April 2013, the Board consisted of the Chairman, three Non-Executive Directors and two
Executive Directors. The Chairman of the Board is Debbie Hewitt who joined the Board as an Independent
Non-Executive Director on 1 June 2009 and was appointed acting Chairman from 25 March 2010 and
Chairman from 27 April 2010. Maurice Helfgott is the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director.
The Group considers Maurice Helfgott, Bryan Portman, Zoe Morgan and the Chairman, Debbie Hewitt,
to be independent Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
CONTINUED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT CONTINUED
Board papers containing relevant commercial and financial information are normally provided to all Board
members in the week prior to a Board meeting to enable the Directors to consider the issues for discussion.
The Board regularly reviews the type and amount of information provided. The Board plans to meet at least
seven times a year including a meeting to review and discuss the strategic issues facing the Company. The
Board also holds meetings as appropriate, to fulfil the ongoing requirements of the business during the year.

BOARD COMMITTEES
In accordance with the Code and corporate governance best practice, the Board has established a number
of committees. All of the committees have written terms of reference, approved by the Board.
The Board held seven meetings during the year. The attendance of each of the Directors at these meetings
and committee meetings where appropriate is detailed below:
Committee meetings
Remuneration
Nomination

Board meetings

Audit

Number of meetings

7

3

2

2

Debbie Hewitt
Maurice Helfgott
Simon Berwin#
Brian Brick
Robin Piggott
Bryan Portman
Zoe Morgan*

7
7
3
7
7
7
2

3
3
–
–
–
3
–

2
2
–
–
–
2
–

2
2
1
–
–
2
–

*Appointed during the year

#

Resigned during the year

DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES
Brian Brick is the Chief Executive Officer and together with the Executive Management team is responsible
for co-ordination of the Group’s business activities. The structure of the Board provides a balance whereby
no individual or group can dominate the Board’s decision making. Brief details of each Director’s other
directorships are disclosed on page 28.
The Board is responsible for setting the Group’s strategic direction, the establishment of Group policies
and internal controls and the monitoring of operational performance. It meets regularly throughout the
year and in addition to the routine reporting of financial and operational issues, reviews each of the trading
areas and key functions.
The Board has a schedule of matters specifically reserved to it for decision and delegates certain issues
and powers to the Board Committees. The schedule of reserved matters is reviewed by the Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee is chaired by Bryan Portman (MBA, FCCA, FCIS), and during the financial year also
comprised Debbie Hewitt (MBA, FCIPD) and Maurice Helfgott (MBA). The terms of reference for the Audit
Committee provide that the Chief Executive Officer and Finance Director are invited to attend the meetings
as appropriate.
The Committee met three times during the year and reported to the Board on all matters relating to the
regulatory and accounting requirements affecting the Group, together with the financial reporting and
internal control procedures including the annual and interim financial statements. In addition, the Audit
Committee ensures that an objective and professional relationship is maintained with the external auditor.
The external auditor may attend all meetings of the Audit Committee and have direct access to the Audit
Committee and its Chairman.
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The Audit Committee also reviews the possible risks facing the Group, the risk management function and
internal controls.
There is an opportunity for any employee, in confidence, to raise any concerns with management about
possible impropriety in financial or other matters. The Company has established an internal confidential
helpline which is independent of line management.
The terms of reference for the Audit Committee are available from the Company Secretary and at
www.mossbros.co.uk.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Maurice Helfgott and during the financial year also comprised
Debbie Hewitt and Bryan Portman. The Remuneration Report is set out on pages 23 to 31.
The terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee are available from the Company Secretary and at
www.mossbros.co.uk.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
The Nomination Committee is chaired by Debbie Hewitt and all the Non-Executive Directors are members.
It monitors and reviews the membership of the succession to the Board of Directors. It identifies and
recommends potential Executive and Non-Executive Directors to the Board.
The terms of reference for the Nomination Committee are available from the Company Secretary and at
www.mossbros.co.uk.

EXECUTIVE TRADING COMMITTEE
The Executive Management team of the Group consists of the two Executive Directors, and senior
members of the management team.
The Executive Management team, as well as monitoring and controlling the day-to-day management of
the business, regularly reviews the strategic aims of the Group and capital and revenue expenditure.

APPOINTMENTS TO THE BOARD
On appointment to the Board, every Director is provided with the opportunity for appropriate induction
and training to enable them to discharge their duties as a Director. Additional training may be sought
as necessary.
The Board has conducted a review of its effectiveness and the effectiveness of each individual Director.
The conclusions of the review have been presented to and discussed by the Board as a whole and
actions resulting from this review will be kept under review during the forthcoming year. The Senior
Independent Director separately reviews the performance of the Chairman, with input from Executive
and Non-Executive Directors.
Board members are appointed by the Board on the recommendation of the Nomination Committee, which
is chaired by the Chairman and consists of the Non-Executive Directors, although the Chief Executive
Officer is invited to meetings as appropriate.
Copies of the Executive Directors’ service contracts with the Company and copies of the Non-Executive
Directors’ letters of appointment with the Company are available from the Company Secretary.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
CONTINUED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT CONTINUED
THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
The Articles provide that one-third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation. Furthermore,
Article 92 of the existing Articles requires a Director to stand for re-election if they were not appointed or
reappointed at either of the last two Annual General Meetings and article 90 requires Directors to stand for
re-election if they have served as a Director for a continuous period of more than nine years.
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Articles, in compliance with best practice, all directors offer
themselves for re-election annually.
Evaluation of the Board’s performance has been conducted through individual questionnaires, followed by
a review of the output by the Board and an action plan of improvements.

RE-ELECTION
Subject to re-election at the first AGM after which they were appointed, Non-Executive Directors are
appointed initially for a three year term. The Group will take into account the balance of skills and
experience on the Board, their contribution and level of independence when considering whether to extend
their appointment beyond the initial term. The Board may ask a Non-Executive Director to remain for a
further term. The Non-Executive Directors’ contracts are terminable on three months’ notice and the
Chairman’s on six months’ notice.

INFORMATION AND SUPPORT
All Directors have access to the advice of the Company Secretary, who is responsible to the Board for
ensuring that procedures are followed. In addition the Directors are able to seek appropriate independent
professional advice at the Group’s expense.
The Board takes significant measures to ensure that all Board members are kept aware of both the views
of the major shareholders and changes in the major shareholdings of the Group.
The Board ensures two-way communication with major shareholders, through Broker briefings and
feedback from the Executive Directors following meetings with major shareholders. The Chairman also
meets with major shareholders on a regular basis.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND AUDITORS
During the period ended 26 January 2013, the Group’s external auditor, Deloitte LLP, provided advice
to the Group, including advice in relation to tax. The fees paid to Deloitte for non-audit services were
£22,000 (2011/12: £72,000). The use of Deloitte LLP for non-audit work was carefully evaluated by the Audit
Committee and the Board.
The Audit Committee views the independence and objectivity of the Group’s auditor as essential and
ensures that Deloitte is not instructed on any issues which would prejudice this. The Audit Committee
obtains written confirmation on at least an annual basis of the independence of the external auditor.
To fulfil its responsibility regarding the independence of the external auditor, the Audit Committee also
reviewed:
• the external auditor’s plan for the current year, noting the role of the senior statutory audit partner, who
signs the audit report and who, in accordance with professional rules, has not held office for more than
five years, and any changes in the key audit staff;
• the arrangements for day-to-day management of the audit relationship;
• the overall extent of non-audit services provided by the external auditor; and
• the past service of the auditor that was first appointed for the year ended 31 January 2009.
It is also the Committee’s policy to consider every year whether there should be an audit tender process.
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To assess the effectiveness of the external auditor, the Audit Committee reviewed:
• the arrangements for ensuring the external auditor’s independence and objectivity;
• the external auditor’s fulfilment of the agreed audit plan and any variations from the plan;
• the robustness and perceptiveness of the external auditor in their handling of the key accounting and
audit judgements; and
• the content of the external auditor’s reporting on internal control.

ACCOUNTABILITY
Each person who is a Director at the date of approval of this Annual Report confirms that:
• so far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is
unaware; and
• the Director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a Director in order to make
himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is
aware of that information.
This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Act.
Deloitte LLP have expressed their willingness to continue in office as auditor and a Resolution to reappoint
them will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

GOING CONCERN
The Group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development,
performance and position are set out in the Chairman’s Statement and the Chief Executive’s Business
Review. The latter describes the financial position of the Group, its cash flows, liquidity position, together
with the Group’s objectives, key risks and uncertainties. The Group’s financial risk management objectives
and its exposures to credit risk and liquidity risk are described in note 24.
As also highlighted in note 24 to the financial statements, the Group meets its day-to-day working capital
requirements through surplus cash balances.
The Board of Directors has undertaken a recent thorough review of the Group’s budgets and forecasts and
has produced detailed cash flow projections, which take account of reasonably possible changes in trading
performance, showing that the Group is expected to operate within the level of its current surplus cash
balances.
After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group and Company have
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Annual Report and Accounts for the 52 weeks
ended 26 January 2013.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board has applied principle C.2 of the UK Corporate Governance Code by establishing a continuous
process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks the Group faces and for determining
the nature and extent of the significant risks it is willing to take in achieving its strategic objectives. The
Board regularly reviews the process, which has been in place from the start of the year to the date of
approval of this report and which is in accordance with revised guidance on internal control published in
October 2005 (the Turnbull Guidance). The Board is also responsible for the Group’s system of internal
control and for reviewing its effectiveness. Such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT CONTINUED
In compliance with provision C.2.1 of the UK Corporate Governance Code, the Board regularly reviews
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems. The Board’s monitoring
covers all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls. It is based principally
on reviewing reports from management to consider whether significant risks are identified, evaluated,
managed and controlled and whether any significant weaknesses are promptly remedied and indicate a
need for more extensive monitoring. The Board has also performed a specific assessment for the purpose
of this annual report. This assessment considered all significant aspects of risk management and internal
control arising during the period covered by the report including the work of internal audit. The audit
committee assists the Board in discharging its review responsibilities.
During the course of its review of the risk management and internal control systems, the Board has
not identified nor been advised of any failings or weaknesses which it has determined to be significant.
Therefore a confirmation in respect of necessary actions has not been considered appropriate.
The Board recognises that no system of internal control can provide absolute assurance against losses
arising from mismanagement and that the Group’s systems must be designed to manage rather than
eliminate risk. Internal control and risk management is an ongoing process designed to identify, evaluate
and manage the significant risks faced by the Group. The system of internal control includes internal
financial controls, operational procedures, risk management and compliance matters. The system has
been in place throughout the period ended 26 January 2013 and up to the date of this Report.
The significant risks the Board has identified are detailed in the Chief Executive’s Business Review.
During the period the Board has reviewed the adequacy of the current internal audit department in
accordance with the Code. In view of the size and scale of the Group, the Board decided it was not
appropriate to expand the current scope of the internal audit function which focuses on inventory and cash
control.
The Group’s work to review the risk management structure and ensure a robust mechanism is in place for
logging and monitoring risks continues.
By order of the Board

BRIAN BRICK

ROBIN PIGGOTT

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

FINANCE DIRECTOR AND COMPANY SECRETARY

9 April 2013

9 April 2013
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT
This report has been prepared in accordance with Schedule 8 to the Large and Medium-Sized Companies
and Groups (Account and Reports) Regulations 2008. The report also meets the relevant requirements
of the Listings Rules of the Financial Services Authorities and describes how the Board has applied the
principles relating to directors’ remuneration in the UK Corporate Governance Code.
As required by Companies Act 2006, a Resolution to approve the report will be proposed at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company at which the financial statements will be approved.
The Companies Act 2006 requires the Auditors to report to the Company’s members on certain parts of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report and to state whether in their opinion those parts of the report have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Accounting Regulations. The report has therefore been divided
into separate sections for audited and unaudited information.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
During the year ended 26 January 2013, the Committee consisted of the following Non-Executive Directors:
Maurice Helfgott (Chairman)
Debbie Hewitt
Bryan Portman
Maurice Helfgott and Bryan Portman are independent Non-Executive Directors. The Company Chairman,
Debbie Hewitt (who was independent on appointment), is also a member of the Committee.
Moss Bros Group PLC falls under the category of a ‘small company’ as defined by the UK Corporate
Governance Code, which only requires two independent Non-Executive Directors to sit on the
Remuneration Committee.
The Chief Executive will attend meetings periodically but will play no part in any discussions relating to his
own remuneration.
The Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board within agreed terms of reference
on the Company’s policy on remuneration and the individual remuneration packages for the Executive
Directors. The Committee is also responsible for the operation of any share-based incentive schemes
(including all employee schemes). In determining its policy the Committee has regard to the principles
and provisions of the Code as well as the Listing Rules and associated guidance on good governance. The
Committee operates under the delegated authority of the Board under agreed terms of reference which
are available from the Company Secretary upon request.
During 2012/13, the Committee received advice from New Bridge Street (a trading name AON Corporation)
on senior executive remuneration and employee share schemes. Neither New Bridge Street nor AON
Corporation provided other services to the Company during the period.
The remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors is determined by the Board as a whole.

REMUNERATION POLICY
The Remuneration Committee determines the Company’s policy on the remuneration of the Executive
Directors and other senior executives. The principles which underpin the remuneration policy for the
Company are:
• to ensure Executive Directors’ rewards and incentives are directly aligned with the interests of the
shareholders in order to reinforce the strategic priorities of the Group, optimise the performance of the
Group and create sustained growth in shareholder value, without there being any encouragement to
take undue risk;
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• to provide the level of remuneration required to attract, retain and motivate Executive Directors of an
appropriate calibre;
• to ensure a proper balance of fixed and variable performance related components, linked to short and
longer-term objectives; and
• to reflect market competitiveness, taking account of the total value of all the benefit elements.
Remuneration for the Executive Directors is structured so that the variable pay element (annual bonus
and long-term incentives) forms a significant proportion of the overall package. This provides a strong
link between the remuneration paid to Executive Directors and the performance of the Company. This also
provides a strong alignment of interest between the Executive Directors and shareholders (particularly as
part of the annual bonus and all of the long-term incentive is payable in the form of shares).

INDIVIDUAL ELEMENTS OF REMUNERATION
The main components of the remuneration package for Executive Directors for 2012/13 are shown below:
Financial Director

Chief Executive Officer
11%

Total

2%

12%

16%

3%

36%

31%

67%

14%

75%
28%

Salary

Pension

Bonus

5%

Long-term incentive plan (vested during the year)

SALARY
Salaries for the Executive Directors are determined by the Remuneration Committee taking into account
the experience and performance of the individual and comparing the levels of remuneration with the
salaries of comparable UK based retailers. They also reflect the overall package in relation to fixed and
variable pay.
Base salaries are reviewed annually, unless responsibilities change. In setting appropriate salary levels for
the Executive Directors and considering whether there should be any increases, the Committee takes into
account pay and employment conditions of employees elsewhere in the Group.
The base salary for Brian Brick, Chief Executive Officer, during the period was £285,000 per annum
(2011/12: £250,000) and for Robin Piggott, Finance Director and Company Secretary, was £185,000 per
annum (2011/12: £170,000).
The Remuneration Committee has awarded modest cost of living salary increases of 2.5% for the
forthcoming year which reflect the general level of increase given to employees across the business, and
are considered to be at the median for equivalent roles in other retailers of a similar size. With effect from
1 February 2013, these increases will take Brian Brick’s base salary to £292,125 and Robin Piggott’s base
salary to £189,625.
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ANNUAL BONUS
For the 2012/13 financial year the maximum bonus opportunity for Brian Brick and Robin Piggott remain
unchanged from the prior year and will be 100% and 80% of salary respectively. Bonus will be based on a
range of stretching PBT targets set at the start of the year.
50% of any bonus payment will be invested in shares and deferred for a three year period. Deferred
shares will vest, without further performance conditions, provided the individual is still employed with the
Company and not under notice of termination.
Members of the Executive Management team are also eligible to participate in the annual bonus scheme,
with a 50% maximum bonus opportunity.
The Committee considers that this is a fully market competitive bonus plan, providing an incentive
designed to drive and reward excellent short-term operating performance of the Group, with the deferred
element providing a strong focus on share price performance over the deferral period and retention of the
individual.
For the 2012/13 financial year Brian Brick qualified for a bonus of 100% of salary (£285,000) and Robin
Piggott a bonus of 80% of salary (£148,000).
For the 2013/14 financial year the maximum bonus potential for Brian Brick and Robin Piggott remains
unchanged from 2012/13.

LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
In 2009/10, shareholder approval was obtained for the Moss Bros Group 2009 Long-Term Incentive Plan
(LTIP). Under the LTIP, members of the Executive Management Team (including Executive Directors) may
receive an award of a number of ordinary shares in the Company issued in the future at a nil exercise price,
subject to the achievement of performance conditions. In 2009 an award was made with a view to this
covering several years. With effect from 2012 the Committee moved to a policy of granting lower awards on
an annual basis, subject to appropriately stretching targets.

• 2009-2015 AwArd
The first award was granted under the LTIP in 2009. This award may vest in any financial year,
commencing with the financial year ended of grant date, up to a six year period ending with the financial
year ended January 2015, subject to the satisfaction of challenging EBITDA performance thresholds and
the requirement for continued employment. If the targets are not achieved during the six year period, the
award will lapse.
The performance period for this LTIP award was extended to a six year scheme following the disposal of
Hugo Boss and Cecil Gee, to reflect the extra degree of stretch in the targets that had been set with the
loss of the trading profits from these disposals.
The performance conditions for these awards are assessed each year against the following EBITDA range,
with progressive vesting as follows:
(i)

the first 50% of the award will vest if the EBITDA for the Company is equal to or greater than
£3 million for any financial year in the performance period;

(ii)

the next 25% of the award will vest if the EBITDA for the Company is equal to or greater than
£5 million for any financial year in the performance period; and

(iii) the final 25% of the award will vest if the EBITDA for the Company is equal to or greater than
£9 million for any financial year in the performance period.
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EBITDA for these purposes means Earnings before Interest, Taxation, Depreciation (including, for the sake
of clarity, depreciation of hire inventory) and Amortisation, excluding the effects of Exceptional Items and
after any charges arising from the LTIP.
Awards will only vest if the Remuneration Committee is satisfied that:
(i)

the EBITDA performance for the relevant financial year is reflective of the long-term underlying
financial performance of the Company (taking into account expected future financial performance of the
Company);

(ii)

the Company’s Profit Before Taxation for the relevant financial year is consistent with the calculation
of the relevant EBITDA figure; and

(iii) the Company has instituted a regular dividend payment (or the Board has unanimously determined
that, although retained earnings are considered sufficient to commence the payment of dividends under
a regular dividend policy, dividends should not be paid and instead retained earnings should be used
for other purposes).
EBITDA was chosen as the performance metric as it provides a strong focus on the level of profitability
at an operating level. The Committee will ensure that a consistent approach (in line with our principal
accounting policies) is taken in relation to its calculation.
Grant levels for the initial awards have been determined to take account of the need to provide a retentive
and long-term focus to remuneration policy for the senior executive team. EBITDA at the levels required
represents a sustained and significant improvement in the Company’s performance which would add
significant shareholder value.
In line with the Company’s performance in 2011/12 and the achievement of the £5 million EBITDA
threshold, 75% of this Award vested to participants in March 2012. The remaining 25% will not vest until
the EBITDA for the Company is equal to or greater than £9 million for any financial year in the performance
period. Should this target not be achieved by January 2015, the award will lapse.

• 2012-2015 AwArd
An LTIP award for members of the Executive Management Team (including Executive Directors) with a
performance period covering the three financial years ending January 2015 was made in April 2012. The
award was based on a number of ordinary shares in the Company issued in the future at a nil exercise
price, subject to the satisfaction of challenging performance conditions and the requirement for continued
employment.
Recognising the improvement in the level and stability of the Company’s profitability the Committee
considered that the performance condition should be based on PBT (as opposed to EBITDA). PBT for these
purposes means operating profit after any charges arising from the LTIP and it will exclude exceptional
profits, onerous lease provision release, interest, movement in Hire Deposits and other material accruals,
unless the Remuneration Committee considers them appropriate to include. The targets may be adjusted
in order to neutralise the effect of any changes to the capital base.
Depending on the Company’s cumulative PBT performance during the three year performance period, the
following percentages of the award will vest:
(i)

25% will vest if the business achieves a cumulative PBT of £7.9m;

(ii)

50% will vest if the business achieves a cumulative PBT of £8.4m;

(iii) 75% will vest if the business achieves a cumulative PBT of £8.9m;
(iv)
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Awards will only vest if the Remuneration Committee is satisfied that:
(i)

the PBT performance for the relevant financial year is reflective of the long-term underlying financial
performance of the Company (taking into account expected future financial performance of the
Company);

(ii)

the Company has maintained a regular dividend payment (or the Board has unanimously determined
that, although retained earnings are considered sufficient to continue the payment of dividends under
a regular dividend policy, dividends should not be paid and instead retained earnings should be used
for other purposes).

• 2013-2016 AwArd
The Remuneration Committee has approved a new LTIP award for members of the Executive Management
Team (including Executive Directors) to be made in April 2013 with a performance period covering the
three financial years ending January 2016. The award will be based on a number of ordinary shares in the
Company issued in the future at a nil exercise price, subject to continued employment, regular dividend
payments and consistent underlying profit performance.
For Brian Brick and Robin Piggott this award is equivalent to 100% and 70% of salary respectively.
The Remuneration Committee considered that the performance condition should again be based on
PBT; PBT for these purposes to have the same definition as for the April 2012 Award. The targets may be
adjusted in order to neutralise the effect of any changes to the capital base.
The Committee did consider the inclusion of measures like TSR, but given the stage of the Company’s
turnaround, the Company’s scale and the absence of direct competitors in this market, the Committee
felt that for the current time PBT was an appropriate measure. Furthermore, by making it a cumulative
measure, it would avoid a windfall from the performance of one particular year and therefore promotes
reward for a more progressive growth pattern.
Depending on the Company’s cumulative PBT performance during the three year performance period, the
following percentages of the award will vest:
(i)

25% will vest if the business achieves a cumulative PBT of £12.0m;

(ii)

50% will vest if the business achieves a cumulative PBT of £13.0m;

(iii) 75% will vest if the business achieves a cumulative PBT of £14.0m;
(iv)

100% will vest if the business achieves a cumulative PBT of £15.9m.

The LTIP has a dilution limit (for new and treasury shares) of 15% of the issued ordinary share capital
of the Company in any 10 year period for any share option scheme operated by the Company. As at
26 January 2013 the Company had utilised 8,129,870 (2011/12: 6,446,772) ordinary shares through LTIP
and SAYE awards counting towards the 15% limit which represents 8.19% (2011/12: 6.82%) of the issued
ordinary share capital of the Company.

ALL EMPLOYEE SHARESAVE SCHEME
The Group operates a sharesave scheme which is approved by HM Revenue & Customs. All eligible
employees, including Executive Directors, may be invited to participate on similar terms to save up to a
maximum of £150 each month for a fixed period of three years. At the end of the savings period, individuals
may use their savings to buy ordinary shares in the Company at the option price set at the start of the
scheme. A grant was made under the plan during 2012/13 at the average share price for the three days
preceding the commencement of the scheme, details of which are set out in note 9 of the financial
statements.
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SHARE OWNERSHIP GUIDELINES
To encourage executives to use vested LTIP shares to build and maintain a significant shareholding,
executives will be required to retain all of the post-tax number of shares until a minimum shareholding
has been achieved. Executives who receive an award which exceeds 50% of salary are expected to build a
holding equal in value to 100% of salary, before they are allowed to sell the vested shares. Executives who
receive an award of 50% of salary are expected to build a holding of 50% of salary, along the same lines as
above.

PENSION ENTITLEMENT AND BENEFITS IN KIND
Brian Brick and Robin Piggott are entitled to receive a pension contribution of up to 20% and 15% of base
salary respectively. There were no outstanding pension contributions for Brian Brick and Robin Piggott at
26 January 2013 (28 January 2012: £nil).
Benefits in kind comprise the option of a company car or allowance, a private medical insurance, life
assurance, private health insurance and clothing allowance.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The Committee’s policy is to offer service contracts with notice periods of six to twelve months.
Brian Brick’s contract of service which is dated 16 April 2009 is terminable on twelve months’ notice by
either party. Robin Piggott’s service contract which is dated 28 June 2010 is terminable by either party on
six months’ notice.
Upon termination the Executive Directors are entitled to salary and benefits for the duration of the notice
period. It is the policy of the Remuneration Committee to seek to mitigate termination payments. The
Executive Directors are subject to a six month non-compete clause from the date of termination.

EXTERNAL DIRECTORSHIPS FOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The Company believes that there are benefits to the Company and for Executive Directors accepting
non-executive directorships in other organisations. Executive Directors may accept a non-executive
directorship with the prior agreement of the Board provided it does not conflict with the Group’s interests
and the time commitment does not impact upon the Executive Director’s performance. The Executive
Directors may retain the fees from their external directorships.
Brian Brick is a Director of Ambleside Consulting Limited and also a Director of Capewalk Limited. He did
not receive any fees during the year to 26 January 2013 in respect of either of these directorships.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Non-Executive Directors are generally appointed initially for a three year term and after review will
normally be proposed for a further three year term. The Group takes into account the balance of skills and
experience of the Board, their contribution and level of independence when considering whether to extend
their appointment beyond the initial term. The Chairman’s appointment is terminable on six months’ notice.
All other Non-Executive Directors’ appointments are terminable on three months’ notice on either side.
Details of their current appointments are as follows:

Appointment date

Debbie Hewitt
Maurice Helfgott
Bryan Portman
Zoe Morgan

1 June 2009
19 October 2010
1 July 2011
1 November 2012

Non-Executive Directors are not entitled to bonus payments or pension arrangements nor do they
participate in the Company’s long-term incentive schemes. Fees for the Non-Executive Directors are
determined by the Board within the limits set by the Articles of Association and are based on information on
fees paid in similar companies taking into account the experience of the individuals and the relative time
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commitments involved. Fees for the Non-Executive Directors are reviewed in alternate years, the next
review being 2014. Debbie Hewitt’s fees are £100,000 per annum and Maurice Helfgott, Bryan Portman and
Zoe Morgan’s fees are £38,500 per annum. These fees recognise the time commitment involved and the
need to ensure that we can attract and retain Non-Executive Directors of the highest calibre.
Simon Berwin who left the company on 29 May 2012 received no payment in lieu of notice.

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN
The graph below shows the total cumulative shareholder return for the Group since 1 February 2008. The
index selected was the FTSE Small Cap Index as this was the index of which the Group was a constituent for
most of the period shown.
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AUDITED INFORMATION
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
Full details of the emoluments of the Directors, relating to the year ended 26 January 2013 were as
follows:
Pension
Pension
Total contributions contributions
2011/12
2012/13(a)
2011/12
£’000
£’000
£’000

Salary
£’000

Benefits
£’000

Bonus(b)
£’000

Total
2012/13
£’000

Brian Brick
Robin Piggott

285
185

25
15

285
148

595
348

526
346

57
28

50
26

Total

470

40

433

943

872

85

76

(a) Brian Brick’s pension entitlement of £57,000 was paid as a £50,000 contribution to an approved pension scheme (2011/12: £50,000) and £7,000 as
taxable remuneration. Robin Piggott’s pension entitlement was paid as taxable remuneration of £27,750 (2011/12: £26,000)
(b) 50% of the bonus is deferred in shares

Benefits in kind include the provision to every Executive Director of private medical insurance, life assurance,
private health insurance, car allowance and clothing allowance.
Based on performance during the year, it was determined that bonuses of a total of £433,000 (2011/12:
£386,000) should be payable to Executive Directors. The maximum bonuses were awarded for performance
in 2012/13, taking into account the strong financial performance of the business, which exceeded market
expectations and progress on the Group’s strategic agenda. Half of any bonus is deferred in shares in line
with the policy: accordingly for Brian Brick £142,500 and for Robin Piggott £74,000 of the bonus above is
deferred in shares.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
Details of the Non-Executive Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 26 January 2013 are set out below:
Fee
£’000

Benefits(e)
£’000

2012/13
Total
£’000

2011/12
Total
£’000

Debbie Hewitt (e)
Simon Berwin (c)
Maurice Helfgott
Bryan Portman (a)
Anthony Bogod (b)
Mark Bernstein (b)
Zoe Morgan (d)

100
10
39
39
–
–
10

1
–
–
–
–
–
–

101
10
39
39
–
–
10

81
30
38
22
22
21
–

Total

198

1

199

214

(a) Bryan Portman was appointed a Non-Executive Director part way through the 2011/12 period
(b) Anthony Bogod and Mark Bernstein resigned as Non-Executive Directors part way through the 2011/12 period
(c) Simon Berwin resigned as Non-Executive Director part way through the period under review and received no payment in lieu of notice
(d) Zoe Morgan was appointed a Non-Executive Director part way through the period under review
(e) Clothing allowance benefit is available to Debbie Hewitt only, as this benefit was withdrawn for newly appointed Non-Executives from 2010/11 onwards

MOSS BROS GROUP 2009 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN (LTIP)
Details of the awards held by the Executive Directors under the Moss Bros Group 2009 Long-Term Incentive
Plan are set out below:
At 28
Granted Exercised
January during the during the
2012
period
period
Brian Brick

5,128,205
–
5,128,205

Robin Piggott

– (3,846,153)
607,028

At 26
January
2013

1,282,052 16.11.2009

–

607,028 (3,846,153)

Date of
award

607,028 05.04.2012

Performance
period

Exercise
period

16.11.2009
16.11.2009
– 31.01.2015 – 15.11.2019
29.01.2012
04.04.2015
– 31.01.2015 – 04.04.2022

Share
price on
date of
grant £

Exercise
price £

Share
price on
date of
exercise

0.2545

–

0.48

0.4695

–

–

0.2288

–

0.48

0.4695

–

–

1,889,080

453,207

–

(339,905)

113,302 08.10.2010

–

275,828

–

275,828 05.04.2012

453,207

275,828

(339,905)

08.10.2010
08.10.2010
– 31.01.2015 – 07.11.2020
29.02.2012
04.04.2015
– 31.01.2015 – 04.04.2022

389,130

All awards granted under the LTIP are subject to continued employment and the satisfaction of the
performance conditions set out on page 51. All awards have a nil exercise price.
Following the agreed disposal of the Hugo Boss Franchise Business on 3 March 2011, the Remuneration
Committee agreed amendments to the LTIP as set out on page 51.

SHARE OPTIONS
All options under this scheme have previously lapsed and there were no grants during the period under review.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS
The beneficial interests of the Directors who served at the end of the year, together with those of their
families are shown in the Report of the Directors on page 16.
The mid market price of the Company’s shares during the period ranged from 34.9 pence to 71.5 pence.
At 26 January 2013, the mid market price was 71 pence.
By Order of the Board

MAURICE HELFGOTT
CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

9 April 2013
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT
IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT, THE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT AND THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations.
Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law the Directors are required to prepare the group financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation and have chosen to prepare the parent company financial statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable
law). Under company law the directors must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for
that period.
In preparing the parent company financial statements, the Directors are required to:
• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
• make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
• state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and
• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the company will continue in business.
In preparing the group financial statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors:
• properly select and apply accounting policies;
• present information including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information;
• provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient
to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the
entity’s financial position and financial performance; and
• make an assessment of the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the Company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:
• the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework, give
a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the company and the
undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole; and
• the management report, which is incorporated into the Directors’ report, includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the position of the Company and the undertakings
included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that they face.
By order of the Board

BRIAN BRICK

ROBIN PIGGOTT

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

FINANCE DIRECTOR AND COMPANY SECRETARY

9 April 2013

9 April 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF MOSS BROS GROUP PLC

We have audited the financial statements of Moss Bros Group PLC for the period ended 26 January 2013
which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement, the Company Balance Sheet and the related notes 1 to 26. The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent Company financial statements
is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).
This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the Directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our
responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Group’s and the parent Company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied
and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors;
and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and
non-financial information in the annual report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited
financial statements. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we
consider the implications for our report.

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In our opinion:
• the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the parent
Company’s affairs as at 26 January 2013 and of the Group’s profit for the period then ended;
• the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union;
• the parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
• the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006 and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.
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SEPARATE OPINION IN RELATION TO IFRSs AS ISSUED BY THE IASB
As explained in note 1 to the Group financial statements, the Group in addition to complying with its legal
obligation to apply IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, has also applied IFRSs as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).
In our opinion the Group financial statements comply with IFRSs as issued by the IASB.

OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006
In our opinion:
• the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006; and
• the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:
• adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Company, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
• the parent Company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be
audited are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
• certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

OTHER MATTERS
Although not required to do so, the directors have voluntarily chosen to make a corporate governance
statement detailing the extent of their compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code. We reviewed:
• the Directors’ statement, contained within the Directors’ Report, in relation to going concern;
• the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Company’s compliance with the nine
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our review; and
• certain elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on Directors’ remuneration.

GEORGINA ROBB FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF DELOITTE LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom
9 April 2013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 JANUARY 2013

52 weeks to 26 January 2013

52 weeks to
28 January

Exceptional

2012

Underlying**
£’000

items***
£’000

Total
£’000

Total
£’000

Revenue

104,600

887

105,487

101,151

Cost of sales

(42,300)

(42,300)

(40,748)

Gross profit

62,300

63,187

60,403

Administrative expenses

(5,852)

(5,852)

(6,316)
(53,110)

Notes

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Shops’ selling and marketing costs
Operating profit

–
887
–

(53,716)

(756)

(54,472)

2,732

131

2,863

977

24

2

–

2

(22)

Investment revenues

4

246

–

246

71

Financial costs

4

–

–

–

(126)

5

2,980

131

3,111

900

Other gains and losses

Profit on ordinary activities
before taxation
Taxation (charge)/credit

10

Profit from continuing operations
after taxation

(776)

50

(726)

643

2,204

181

2,385

1,543

–

–

–

5,330

19

2,204

181

2,385

6,873

24

28

–

28

–

28

–

28

–

2,232

181

2,413

6,873

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Profit after taxation
from discontinued operations*
Profit after taxation attributable to
equity holders of the parent
Other comprehensive income
Cash flow hedges
Change in fair value of effective portion
Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year
Earnings/(loss) per share (pence)
2.43p

7.27p

Diluted – total

2.33p

6.81p

Basic – continuing

2.43p

1.63p

Diluted – continuing

2.33p

1.53p

Basic – total

11

Underlying** earnings/(loss) per share
(pence)
Basic – continuing operations

1.63p

11

Diluted – continuing operations

1.53p

*

Included in 2011/12 profit after taxation from discontinued operations are exceptional items arising from the sale of Hugo Boss and Cecil Gee
discontinued operations (£7,529,000 profit before tax and £2,175,000 taxation charge)

**

Underlying represents results before exceptional items as defined in note 1 of the Financial Statements

*** Refer to note 6

36

I MOSS BROS GROUP PLC shop on-line at www.moss.co.uk

Job No: 14120

Proof Event: 5

Customer: Moss Bros

Project Title: Report & Accounts 2012/13

Park Communications Ltd

Alpine Way

T: 0207 055 6500

London E6 6LA
F: 020 7055 6600

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 JANUARY 2013

52 WEEKS ENDED 28 JANUARY 2012
BALANCE AT 29 JANUARY 2011

Share
Share- Employee
Share premium
based
benefit
capital account payments
trust
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000

Hedging Retained
reserve earnings
£’000
£’000

Total
equity
£’000

4,727

8,673

387

(218)

–

13,302

26,871

Profit for the period

–

–

–

–

–

6,873

6,873

Credit to equity for
equity settled share-based payments

–

–

1,072

–

–

–

1,072

Subscription to employee benefit trust

–

–

–

(486)

–

–

(486)

4,727

8,673

1,459

(704)

–

20,175

34,330

Hedging Retained
reserve earnings
£’000
£’000

Total
equity
£’000

BALANCE AT 28 January 2012

52 WEEKS ENDED 26 JANUARY 2013
BALANCE AT 26 JANUARY 2012

Share
Share- Employee
Share premium
based
benefit
capital account payments
trust
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000
4,727

8,673

1,459

(704)

–

20,175

34,330

–

–

–

–

–

2,385

2,385

Cash flow hedging movement

–

–

–

–

28

–

28

Total comprehensive income for the period

–

–

–

–

28

2,385

2,413

238

–

–

(238)

–

–

–

Profit for the period
Other comprehensive income:

Issue of share capital/share options exercised
Dividends paid

–

–

–

–

–

(571)

(571)

(Debit)/credit to equity for
equity settled share-based payments

–

–

(892)

238

-

926

272

Subscription to employee benefit trust

–

–

–

(1,121)

–

–

(1,121)

4,965

8,673

567

(1,825)

28

22,915

35,323

BALANCE AT 26 January 2013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 26 JANUARY 2013
26 January
Notes

28 January

2013

2012

£’000

£’000

ASSETS
Intangible assets

13

1,231

1,058

Property, plant and equipment

14

11,488

11,953

Leasehold improvements

14

883

923

Deferred tax assets

10

822

1,279

14,424

15,213

13,825

14,085

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories

16

Trade and other receivables

17

4,666

4,073

Cash and cash equivalents

24

25,723

23,332

Derivative financial instruments

24

8

–

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

44,222

41,490

TOTAL ASSETS

58,646

56,703

LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables

20

14,749

14,965

Provisions

22

564

567

Derivative financial instruments

24

Current tax liability
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

–

22

548

390

15,861

15,944

1,741

1,647

Other payables

21

Provisions

22

2,619

1,684

Deferred tax liabilities

10

3,102

3,098

7,462

6,429

TOTAL LIABILITIES

23,323

22,373

NET ASSETS

35,323

34,330

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

EQUITY
Issued capital

18

4,965

4,727

Share premium account

19

8,673

8,673

Share-based payments

19

567

1,459

Employee benefit trust

19

Hedge Reserve

24

28

–

Retained earnings

19

22,915

20,175

35,323

34,330

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF PARENT

(1,825)

(704)

The financial statements (registered number 134995) on pages 36 to 67 were approved by the Board of Directors on
9 April 2013 and were signed on its behalf by:

BRIAN BRICK

ROBIN PIGGOTT

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

FINANCE DIRECTOR

9 April 2013

9 April 2013
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 JANUARY 2013

Notes

52 weeks to

52 weeks to

26 January

28 January

2013

2012

£’000

£’000

2,385

6,873

726

1,532

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit after taxation
Adjustments for:
Taxation charge
24

(2)

22

4

(246)

55

Amortisation of intangible assets

13

579

618

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets

14

4,553

4,518

Amortisation of compulsory purchase compensation receipt

14

Other gains and losses
Net finance (income)/expense

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment

(610)

–

305

110

–

(7,529)

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

260

(2,948)

(Increase)/decrease in receivables

(494)

1,930

(20)

(4,592)

Profit on disposal of discontinued operations

Decrease in payables
Increase/(decrease) in provisions
Share-based payments expense

9

932

(726)

286

928

(120)

Taxation received

(3)

8,534

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

788

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
44

71

Purchase of intangible assets

13

(752)

(400)

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

14

(4,760)

(2,648)

Interest received

4

Compulsory purchase compensation receipt allocated to
property, plant and equipment

1,017

–

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment

–

89

Net proceeds on disposal of discontinued activities

–

19,108

(4,451)

NET CASH (USED IN)/RECEIVED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

16,220

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid

4

Dividends paid
Proceeds from the issue of shares

–

(126)

(571)

–

238

–

Subscription to employee benefit trust shares

(1,359)

(486)

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(1,692)

(612)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

23,332

6,936

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

2,391

16,396

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

25,723

23,332
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 26 JANUARY 2013

26 January

28 January

2013

2012

Notes

£’000

£’000

Tangible assets

14

14,419

14,447

Investments

15

9,502

9,502

Deferred tax asset

10

916

1,136

24,837

25,085

13,825

14,085

FIXED ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories

16

Debtors

17

6,994

5,849

Cash and liquid resources

24

25,123

23,239

Derivative financial instruments

24

8

–

45,950

43,173

CREDITORS
Amount falling due within one year

20

26,914

27,112

Provisions falling due within one year

22

564

567

545

390

–

22

28,023

28,091

NET CURRENT ASSETS

17,927

15,082

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

42,764

40,167

1,230

1,044

Current tax liability
Derivative financial instruments

24

CREDITORS
Amount falling due after one year

21

Provisions falling due after one year

22

2,619

1,684

Deferred tax liability

10

3,196

3,098

35,719

34,341

NET ASSETS
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital

18

4,965

4,727

Share premium account

19

8,673

8,673

Share-based payments

19

581

1,315

Employee benefit trust

19

(1,825)

(704)

Acquisition reserve

19

4,370

4,370

Hedge reserve

24

28

–

Profit and loss account

19

18,927

15,960

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

19

35,719

34,341

The financial statements (registered number 134995) were approved by the Board of Directors on 9 April 2013 and were
signed on its behalf by:

BRIAN BRICK
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

9 April 2013
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 JANUARY 2013

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Moss Bros Group PLC (“the Company”) is a public limited company incorporated in Great Britain and domiciled in the United
Kingdom under the Companies Act. The address of the registered office is given on page 4. The nature of the Group’s operations
and its principal activities are set out in note 3 and in the business review on pages 5 to 12. The consolidated financial statements
of the Company for the 52 weeks ended 26 January 2013 (“the period”) comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”).

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). The financial
statements have also been prepared in accordance with IFRSs adopted by the European Union and therefore the group financial
statements comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulation. The Company has elected to prepare its parent company accounts
under UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practices (“UK GAAP”).
The preparation of financial information in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting policies are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except where IFRSs require an alternative treatment.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for the assets.
The Group’s significant accounting policies are set out in this note, together with the judgements made by management in applying
these policies, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements, apart from those
involving estimations, which are dealt with separately in note 2. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all
periods presented in these consolidated financial statements except as set out below. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
The Group and Company financial statements are presented in sterling because that is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Group operates and all values in tables are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds except when
otherwise indicated.
The accounting policies adopted for the period are consistent with those adopted in the financial statements for the 52 weeks
ended 28 January 2012. These can be seen via www.mossbros.co.uk.

STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS EFFECTIVE IN 2012/13
Amendments to IAS 1 (June 2011), Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income improve the consistency and clarity
of the presentation of items of other comprehensive income (OCI). The Group have applied these amendments in advance of the
effective date (annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012). The amendments also highlight the importance that the Board
places on presenting profit or loss and OCI together and with equal prominence.
Amendments to IFRS 7 (Oct. 2010), Disclosures – Transfers of Financial Assets help users of financial statements evaluate the
risk exposures relating to transfers of financial assets and the effect of those risks on an entity’s financial position and promote
transparency in the reporting of transfer transactions, particularly those that involve securitisation of financial assets. This is not
expected to have a significant impact on the Group.
Amendments to IAS 12 (Dec. 2010), Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets provide a practical approach for measuring
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets when investment property is measured using the fair value model in IAS 40
Investment Property. This is not expected to have a significant impact on the Group.

STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO EXISTING STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE AND
HAVE NOT BEEN EARLY ADOPTED BY THE GROUP
The following standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published and, unless otherwise stated,
are mandatory for the Group’s future accounting periods. The Group has not early adopted these interpretations.
IAS 27 (Revised May 2011), Separate Financial Statements contains accounting and disclosure requirements for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates when an entity prepares separate financial statements. This is not expected to have a
significant impact on the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements establishes principles for the presentation and preparation of consolidated financial
statements when an entity controls one or more other entities. This is not expected to have a significant impact on the Group.
IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements establishes principles for financial reporting by parties to a joint arrangement. This is not expected to
have a significant impact on the Group.
IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement defines fair value, sets out in a single IFRS a framework for measuring fair value and requires
disclosures about fair value measurements. This is not expected to have an impact on the Group.
IAS 19 (Revised June 2011), Employee Benefits prescribes the accounting and disclosure by employers for employee benefits. This is
not expected to have a significant impact on the Group.
IFRS 9, Financial Instruments introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets. This is not
expected to have a significant impact on the Group.
Amendments to IFRS 7 (Dec. 2011), Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities amend the required disclosures
to include information that will enable users of an entity’s financial statements to evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting
arrangements, including rights of set-off associated with the entity’s recognised financial assets and recognised financial liabilities,
on the entity’s financial position. This is not expected to have a significant impact on the Group.
Amendments to IAS 32 (Dec. 2011), Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. This is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Group.

INTERPRETATIONS TO EXISTING STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE AND NOT RELEVANT FOR THE
GROUP’S OPERATIONS
The following interpretations to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on
30 January 2011 (unless otherwise stated) but are not relevant for the Group’s operations.
Amendments to IFRS 1 (Dec. 2010), Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters provide guidance for
entities emerging from severe hyperinflation either to resume presenting IFRS financial statements or to present IFRS financial
statements for the first time. The amendments also provide relief for first-time adopters of IFRSs from having to reconstruct
transactions that occurred before their date of transition to IFRSs. This is not expected to have a significant impact on the Group.
IAS 28 (Revised May 2011), Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures prescribes the accounting for investments in associates and
sets out the requirements for the application of the equity method when accounting for investments in associates and joint ventures.
This is not expected to have a significant impact on the Group.
IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities applies to entities that have an interest in a subsidiary, a joint arrangement, an
associate or an unconsolidated structured entity. This is not expected to have a significant impact on the Group.

CONSOLIDATION
The consolidated Group accounts incorporate the accounts of Moss Bros Group PLC and its subsidiaries, all of which have made up
their accounts to 26 January 2013. Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the
power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In
assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable or convertible are taken into account. The financial statements
of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control
ceases. All intercompany balances, income, expenditure and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and accounting standards
and under the historical cost convention. The following Company accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with
items which are considered material in relation to the Company’s financial statements. As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies
Act 2006, the Company has elected not to present its own profit and loss account for the year. The Company is exempt from the
requirement to prepare a cash flow statement in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard Number 1.
The Company made a profit after taxation for the 52 week period to 26 January 2013 of £2,756,000 (2011/12: profit of £6,508,000).
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GOING CONCERN
The Directors, have at the time of approving the financial statements, a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have
adequate resources in place for operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting in preparing the financial statements. Further detail is contained in the Directors’ Report on page 21.

REVENUE
Revenue comprises sales to third parties (excluding VAT) and is derived from the retail sale and hire of clothing and ancillary goods.
Revenue is recognised on exchange of goods; for the hire of clothing, the exchange of goods occurs when the hire clothing and
ancillary goods are collected for use by the customer. At this point it is deemed that all risks and rewards have been transferred.
Hire deposits are held within deferred revenue until this date. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT
and other sales related taxes.

COST OF SALES
Cost of sales includes all costs of purchases and costs incurred in bringing inventories to their present location and condition. Costs
of purchase comprise the purchase price, other taxes and transport costs. Inventory write downs are included in cost of sales when
recognised.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and gains or
losses on translation are included in the income statement.

LEASES
Group
Leases under the terms of which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Assets acquired under finance leases are capitalised and the outstanding future lease obligations are shown in payables. As
at 26 January 2013 and 28 January 2012, the Company had no finance leases. All other leases are defined as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
Amounts payable in respect of contingent rents are recognised in the period to which the sales relate.
Lease incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of expense on a
straight-line basis.

Company
As at 26 January 2013, the Company had no finance leases. Operating lease rentals are charged to the profit and loss account on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to sign an operating lease are spread
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where the period to the review date on which the rent is first expected to be
adjusted to the prevailing market rate is shorter than the full lease term, in which case the shorter period is used.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group enters into foreign exchange forward contracts to manage its exposure to foreign exchange rate risk. Further details of
derivative financial instruments are disclosed in note 24.
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured to
their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative
is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.
A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative fair value is recognised
as a financial liability. A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a non-current liability if the remaining maturity of the
instrument is more than 12 months and it is not expected to be realised or settled within 12 months. Other derivatives are presented
as current assets or current liabilities.

HEDGE ACCOUNTING
Hedges of foreign exchange risk on firm commitments are accounted for as cash flow hedges.
At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged
item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the
inception of the hedge and at interim and period end, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument is highly effective in
offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedged item.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
Cash flow hedge
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in
other comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss, and is
included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the
periods when the hedged item is recognised in profit or loss, in the same line of the income statement as the recognised hedged
item. However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset, the gains and losses
previously accumulated in equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial
asset.
Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income at
that time is accumulated in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a
forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

DIVIDENDS
Dividends are not accrued until approved by Shareholders.

TAXATION
Group
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

CURRENT TAX
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profits as reported in the income
statement because it excludes items of income and expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

DEFERRED TAX
Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if a temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or from the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.
Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Company
Tax on the loss for the periods represented comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted during
the course of the that period and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous periods.
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance sheet date.
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A deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all available evidence, it can be
regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing
differences can be deducted.
Deferred tax is not discounted.

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
Exceptional items are those significant credits or charges which, in the opinion of the Directors, should be separately disclosed
by virtue of their size and one off nature, to enable a full understanding of the Group’s financial performance. Transactions which
may give rise to exceptional items include charges for impairment, significant provisions for onerous property lease contracts,
transactional related costs, redundancy costs and discontinued operations which have a material impact on the absolute amount of
and trend in the result for the period. Therefore, such items are disclosed as exceptional on the face of the income statement.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits.

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND DEBTORS
Trade receivables and debtors represents amounts due from retailers in respect of sub-tenant income and concessions from which
the Group trades less commissions due.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS
Group
Grants/compensation received in respect of expenses incurred are credited to the income statement to match the related expense.
Grants/compensation received in respect of capital expenditure incurred are credited to property, plant and equipment and amortised
to the income statement over the lives of the related assets.

Company
Grants/compensation received in respect of expenses incurred are credited to the income statement to match the related expense.
Grants/compensation received in respect of capital expenditure incurred are credited to creditors and amortised to the income
statement over the lives of the related assets.

PENSIONS
Contributions payable to the Group Personnel Pension Plan and other post retirement benefits are charged to the income statement
in the period to which they relate. Differences between contributions payable in the period and contributions actually paid are shown
as either accruals or prepayments in the balance sheet.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured at the fair value of the equity instrument at the grant date. Details
are set out in note 9. The fair value determined at grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest. At each
balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest as a result of the effect of non
market-based vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in the profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to equity reserves.
The Company has applied the requirements of FRS 20 ‘Share-based Payments’.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Computer software and the directly related development costs that are not an integral part of the related hardware are classified as
an intangible asset and stated at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is charged on a straight-line basis over five years.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Depreciation is calculated so as to write down on a straight-line basis the cost of non-current assets over their estimated useful lives
to their estimated residual values. The rates used are as follows:
Fixtures and fittings
Computer hardware
Vehicles

5-10 years
5 years
6 years

Hire inventory is written down to £nil over its estimated useful economic life of five years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying value of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
The Group considers all the assets of a particular store to be one cash generating unit for the purposes of impairment estimate
and the related assets of a particular store are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. In assessing value in use of a store cash
generating unit, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value.
If the recoverable amount of a cash generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the cash
generating unit is reduced to the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
During the year, the Group embarked on a store development programme. In view of the plans to refit a substantial number of the
Group’s stores over the next 4 years, an additional charge of £0.5m has been taken in 2012/13 to reflect accelerated depreciation on
existing fixtures and fittings in those stores, so that the value of fixtures and fittings replaced on refit will be written off by the date of
refit. The cumulative effect over the next 4 years will be additional depreciation charged of £0.3m on those stores.
This has been treated as a prospective revision to the Group’s estimate for depreciation in accordance with IAS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS
Leasehold improvements are written off over the shorter of the period of the lease or the useful economic life of the assets on a
straight-line basis.
Location premiums are paid to enter a property which is in a desirable location, stated at cost, net of depreciation and any provision
for impairment. Depreciation is calculated on location premiums over the useful economic life on a straight-line basis.

INVESTMENTS
Investments are stated at cost, less amounts written off for any impairment in value.

INVENTORIES
Retail inventory is valued at the lower of cost (weighted average by season) and estimated net realisable value (estimated selling price
less estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in selling and distribution). Net realisable value is estimated as discussed
in note 2. Volume discounts received and receivable are deducted from the cost of inventories.

PROVISIONS
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the balance
sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.
Provisions for onerous property lease contracts are recognised when the Group believes that the unavoidable costs of meeting the
lease obligations exceed the economic benefits to be received under the lease. Where material, these provisions are discounted to
their present value. Provisions are recognised on a lease by lease basis.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain
future development of the business. To achieve this, the Board of Directors monitors the balance sheet, working capital, the cash
flows and the level of dividends paid to shareholders.
The Board seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.
During the period the Company’s approach to capital management was reviewed and a policy of spreading cash deposits across
three UK based banks was adopted so as to minimise the risks associated with default by any one bank. The banks selected carry the
highest available credit ratings.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

46

I MOSS BROS GROUP PLC shop on-line at www.moss.co.uk

Job No: 14120

Proof Event: 5

Customer: Moss Bros

Project Title: Report & Accounts 2012/13

Park Communications Ltd

Alpine Way

T: 0207 055 6500

London E6 6LA
F: 020 7055 6600

2. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In applying the above accounting policies, management has made appropriate estimates in many areas and the actual outcome
may differ from those calculated. The key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date that have a significant risk of
causing material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial period are:

IMPAIRMENT CALCULATIONS
The carrying amount of non-current assets on the balance sheet is dependent on the estimates of future profits and cash flows
arising from the Company’s operations.
The key assumptions for the value used in calculating any impairment loss referred to in the property, plant and equipment
accounting policy note, are regarding expected growth rates to individual stores during the year and discount rates applied to the
forecast cash flows. Management estimates discount rates using a pre-tax discount rate based on the weighted average cost of
capital for the Group. Sales and cost growth rates are based on the managements’ best expectations of future business performance
over a maximum period of five years.
No impairments have been made to assets during 2012/13 (2011/12: £nil).

ONEROUS PROPERTY LEASE CONTRACTS
The Company provides for onerous property lease contracts where the Group believes that the unavoidable costs of meeting the lease
obligations exceed the economic benefit until the end of the lease. The provision is calculated as the lower of contracted rental costs,
estimated net exit costs and the forecast operating losses through to the end of the lease. These provisions are based on the best
estimate of the liability at the balance sheet date, the actual liability being dependent on future events such as economic conditions
and marketplace demand. Expectations will be revised at each period until the actual liability arises, with any difference accounted
for in the period in which the revision is made.
The provision for onerous property lease contracts is discounted to reflect the time value of money.
As a result, a net debit of £932,000 was recognised within the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in relation to onerous
property lease contracts for continuing operations for the period ended 26 January 2013 (2011/12: £375,000 credit).

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
The fair values of the options granted, and shares granted under the LTIP and SAYE, that are referred to in the accounting policies
note, are measured using the Black-Scholes model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options and shares
were granted. Details of the assumptions used are set out in note 9.
The Group has applied the requirements of IFRS2 ‘Share-based Payments’. The Company has applied the requirements of FRS20
‘Share-based Payments’.
The amount recorded in the income statement in respect of share-based payment transactions, is IFRS 2 charge of £286,000 and
employer’s National Insurance charge of £358,000 (2011/12: IFRS 2 charge of £928,000 and employer’s National Insurance charge
£209,000) and relates to the LTIP and SAYE.
The share options granted in 2008/09 lapsed in 2011/12 as the performance conditions were not met.

INVENTORY PROVISIONS
Net realisable value is the selling price of inventory in the ordinary course of business less estimated selling costs. Provision is made
for the estimated obsolescence of old seasons’ lines based on historical margin trends and for the estimated loss of inventory from
shop theft based on historical data. The provision at 26 January 2013 was £525,000 (2011/12 £660,000).

3. REVENUE AND BUSINESS SEGMENTS
OPERATING SEGMENTS
The majority of the Company’s turnover arose in the United Kingdom, with the exception of two stores in Ireland.
IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’ requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about components of
the Group that are regularly reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer to allocate resources to the segments and to assess their
performance.
Information reported to the Group’s Chief Executive Officer for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance is focused on the split between Mainstream Retail, Bespoke and Hire. Given the similarities between Mainstream Retail
and Bespoke, they meet the aggregation criteria under IFRS 8, therefore are both reported under Retail.
Information regarding the Group’s continuing operating segments is reported below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

3. REVENUE AND BUSINESS SEGMENTS CONTINUED
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and gross profit in the current and prior periods:

KEY FINANCIALS
52 weeks to
26 January
2013
£’000

52 weeks to
28 January
2012
£’000

Retail

86,633

84,109

Hire

17,967

17,042

104,600

101,151

Retail

47,245

45,933

Hire

15,055

14,470

Total gross profit

62,300

60,403

Administrative expenses

(5,852)

(6,316)

(53,716)

(53,110)

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue

Total revenue
Gross profit

Shops’ selling and marketing costs
Operating profit
Other gains and losses
Investment revenues
Financial costs
Profit before taxation

2,732

977

2

(22)

246

71

–

(126)

2,980

900

The accounting policies for the reportable segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 1.
Only revenue and gross profit have been reported for the Group’s business segments; Retail and Hire, as the main operating costs,
being property, related overheads and staff, cannot be separately identified as they both use the same stores and hence operating
profit is not reported to the Chief Executive Officer split by Retail and Hire. Revenue and gross profit are the measures reported to the
Chief Executive Officer for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segmental performance.
On the same basis, assets cannot be allocated between Retail and Hire, and are not reported to the Chief Executive Officer separately.

4. INVESTMENT REVENUE AND FINANCIAL COSTS
2012/13
£’000

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Interest receivable on bank deposits
Interest payable on bank overdrafts

48

2011/12
£’000

246

71

–

(126)

246

(55)
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5. PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS AND TAXATION
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation is stated after charging/(crediting) the following:
2012/13
£’000

2011/12
£’000

23,199

23,479

3,751

3,932

Depreciation of leasehold improvements

192

201

Amortisation of intangibles

579

618

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Staff costs
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment including LDA credit amounting to (£712k) (2011/12: (102k))

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Operating lease charges – land and buildings
– other

305

110

18,096
127

18,218
150

(551)

Other operating income

(652)

6. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
2012/13
£’000

2011/12
£’000

887

–

610

–

REVENUE
Receipt relating to finalisation of compulsory purchase compensation claim
Shop selling and marketing costs
Amortisation of compulsory purchase compensation receipt
Provision for onerous property lease contracts

(1,366)

–

131

–

–

–

Profit on disposal of discontinued operations

–

7,529

Total exceptional items from discontinued operations

–

7,529

Total exceptional items from continuing operations
Taxation credit on continuing operations
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Other gains and losses

Taxation (charge)/credit on discontinued operations
TOTAL EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
Total taxation (charge)/credit on exceptional items

–

(2,175)

131

7,529

50

(2,175)

Compulsory purchase compensation of £1,904,000 was received during the year. £887,000 of this amount relates to revenue and
£1,017,000 relates to fixed assets. Of the £1,017,000 which relates to fixed assets, £610,000 has been recognised in the current year
and £407,000 has been deferred into future years to match depreciation on associated assets.
An additional provision for onerous property lease contracts has been made under IAS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets’ of £1,366,000 in respect of 2 loss-making stores as they meet Management’s definition of exceptional items due to
their individual size and nature. The additional provision represents the net present value of additional projected losses for each store,
until the end of lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

7. AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
The analysis of auditor’s remuneration is as follows:

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for other services to the Group
– the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation

2012/13
£’000

2011/12
£’000

86

83

6

6

92

89

Audit related assurance services

9

12

Other assurance services

–

–

Total audit fees

Taxation compliance services
Other taxation advisory services
Total non-audit fees
Total auditor’s remuneration

13

20

–

40

22

72

114

161

8. STAFF NUMBERS AND COSTS
Including Executive Directors, the average monthly number of full-time equivalent staff employed by the Company during the period
was as follows:
2012/13
2011/12
Number
Number
GROUP
Distribution
Selling and marketing
Administration

77

91

824

842

52

43

953

976

COMPANY
Distribution
Selling and marketing

77

91

812

831

52

43

941

965

2012/13
£’000

2011/12
£’000

Wages and salaries

20,501

21,146

Social security costs

2,060

2,017

Contributions to defined contribution plans

352

305

Share-based payments (note 9)

286

928

23,199

24,396

Administration

The aggregate staff costs recognised in the income statement were as follows:

GROUP

Included in the Group aggregated staff costs above were £nil (2011/12: £852,000) wages and salaries and £nil (2011/12: £65,000)
social security costs relating to discontinued operations.
Directors’ emoluments are disclosed within the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 23 to 31.
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9. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
The Group operates a number of share-based payments schemes: the Executive share option scheme, the Sharesave scheme, an
equity-settled Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP).
The Group has applied the requirements of IFRS2 ‘Share-based Payments’. The Company has applied the requirements of FRS20
‘Share-based Payments’. There are no significant differences between FRS20 and IFRS2 as detailed below.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME
On 5 November 2008 share options were granted to one senior employee to purchase shares in Moss Bros Group PLC under the
Executive Share Option Scheme. These share options granted in 2007/08 all lapsed in 2011/12 as the performance conditions were
not met. During the period to 26 January 2013 no additional grants were made.
There was no charge for these schemes in the current period (2011/12: £nil).

Grant date/employees entitled

Number of
share options

Vesting conditions

Contractual life of options

Option grant to one senior
employee on 5 November 2008

244,000

Three years of service. EBITDA to be greater
than £8.0m by the vesting date

10 years (7 years after end
of vesting period)

Fair value of share options and assumptions
Fair value at grant date (pence per share)

5.22

Share price (pence per share)

12.25

Exercise price (pence per share)

12.25

Expected volatility (expressed as weighted average volatility used in the modelling under the Black-Scholes model)

49.5%

Option life (years)

4

Expected dividend yield

Nil

Risk-free interest rate at grant date (based on national government bonds)

3.12%
2012/13

2011/12

Number

Weighted
average
exercise
price
(pence)

Number

Weighted
average
exercise
price
(pence)

Options outstanding at the beginning of the period

–

–

244,000

12.25

Lapsed in the period

–

–

(244,000)

12.25

Options outstanding at the end of the period

–

–

–

–

Fully exercisable at the end of the period

–

–

–

–

There were no Executive share option scheme options outstanding at 26 January 2013.

SAVE AS YOU EARN SHARE OPTION SCHEME
A save as you earn scheme was approved and adopted in the current year. Under the terms of the scheme, the Board may offer
options to purchase ordinary shares in the Company once in each financial year to those employees who enter into an HM Revenue
& Customs (HMRC) approved Save As You Earn (SAYE) savings contract. The board limits the maximum amount saved to £150 per
month. The price at which options were offered is the average closing price for three consecutive dealing days preceding the offer
date. The options may normally be exercised during the six month period after the completion of the SAYE contract, three years after
entering the scheme.
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9. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS CONTINUED
SAVE AS YOU EARN SHARE OPTION SCHEME CONTINUED
2012/13

Number

Weighted
average
exercise
price
(pence)

–

–

760,468

43.90

Options outstanding at the beginning of the period
Granted

(4,966)

Forfeited
Options outstanding at the end of the period

–

755,502

43.90

The fair values of the options granted during the year have been calculated using the Black-Scholes model assuming the inputs
shown below:
2012 3-year plan
Grant date

July 2012

Fair value at grant date (pence per share)

3.99

Share price at grant date (pence per share)

44.00

Exercise price (pence per share)

43.90

Expected volatility (expressed as weighted average volatility used in the modelling under the Black-Scholes model)

18.7%

Option life (years)

3.0

Expected dividend yield

3.0%

Risk-free interest rate

0.5%

The resulting fair value is expensed over the service period of three years on the assumption that 15% of options will lapse over the
service period as employees leave the Group.

LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
In 2009/10 a new equity settled Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) was approved by shareholders. During 2011/12, under the same 2009
LTIP scheme, 328,993 shares were awarded to senior employees on 30 September 2011. In accordance with this plan, the shares
are exercisable at nil cost, subject to the satisfaction of performance conditions and the requirement for the continued employment
during the vesting period. The fair value is measured at grant date using the Black-Scholes pricing model and recognised over the
vesting period.
On 5 April 2012 a new equity settled Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) was approved by shareholders and 1,526,216 shares were
awarded to directors and senior employees. Under the same April 2012 LTIP, 156,882 shares were awarded to senior employees on
8 May 2012. In accordance with this plan, the shares are exerciseable at nil cost, subject to the satisfaction of performance conditions
and the requirement for continued employment during the vesting period. The fair value is measured at grant date and recognised
over the vesting period. These grants are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 2.
The amount recorded in the income statement in respect of share-based payment transactions, is IFRS 2 charge of £286,000 and
employer’s National Insurance charge of £358,000 (2011/12: IFRS 2 charge of £928,000 and employer’s National Insurance charge
£209,000) and relates to the LTIP and SAYE scheme.
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Grant date/employees entitled

Number of
shares under
the LTIP at
26 January 2013

Contractual
life of shares

Option grant to two Directors and senior employees on 7 November 2009

5,664,572

6 years

Option grant to one Director on 8 October 2010

453,207

5 years

Option grant to senior employees on 30 September 2011

328,993

4 years

1,526,216

3 years

156,882

3 years

Option granted to two Directors and senior employees on 5 April 2012
Option granted to senior employees on 8 May 2012
Vesting conditions – see Directors’ Remuneration Report page 26.

Fair value of share options and assumption

May
2012
grant

April
2012
grant

Sept
2011
grant

Oct
2010
grant

Apr
2010
grant

Nov
2009
grant

Fair value at grant date (pence per share)

44.81

43.55

32.57

20.76

22.34

23.85

Share price (pence per share)

49.03

47.65

38.50

22.88

25.00

25.45

–

–

–

–

–

–

Expected volatility (expressed as weighted
average volatility used in the modelling under
the Black-Scholes model)
22.4%

Exercise price (pence per share)

24.9%

58.5%

48.2%

42.1%

21.0%

3.00

3.00

3.33

3.25

2.75

2.17

Expected dividend yield

3.0%

3.0%

3.0%

3.0%

3.0%

3.0%

Risk-free interest rate

0.5%

0.5%

0.5%

0.5%

0.5%

0.5%

Option life (years)

RECONCILIATION OF SHARE AWARDS
2012/13

Share awards outstanding at the beginning of the period
Granted in the period
Exercised in the period

Number

Number

Weighted
average
exercise
price
(pence)

6,446,772

–

6,800,467

–

1,683,098

–

328,993

–

(4,780,828)

–

–

–

–

–

(682,688)

–

3,349,042

–

6,446,772

–

–

–

–

–

Lapsed in the period*
Share awards outstanding at the end of the period
Fully exercisable at the end of the period
*

2011/12
Weighted
average
exercise
price
(pence)

Includes 178,647 shares relating to the April 2010 grant which fully lapsed in 2011/12

All shares are exercised at £nil cost.
Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Group’s share price over the period of four years. The
expected life used in the model has been based on management’s best estimate of the Group meeting the performance conditions.
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10. TAXATION
2012/13
£’000

2011/12
£’000

Current period

576

124

Adjustment for prior periods

(31)

245

545

369

67

(1,263)

271

283

(157)

(32)

(A) TAXATION RECOGNISED IN THE INCOME STATEMENT IS AS FOLLOWS:
GROUP – CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Current tax charge/(credit)

Deferred tax charge/(credit)
Current period
Adjustment for prior periods
Effect of change in tax rate
Total taxation charge/(credit) in the income statement
(B) FACTORS AFFECTING THE TAX CHARGE FOR THE PERIOD
GROUP – CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Profit on ordinary activities before tax
Profit before tax multiplied by rate of corporation tax in the UK of 24.3% (2011/12: 26.3%)

181

(1,012)

726

(643)

2012/13
£’000

2011/12
£’000

3,111

900

756

237

73

309

Depreciation on assets not qualifying for capital allowances

202

392

Adjustment in respect of prior period

240

528

Items not deductible for tax purposes

Effect of movement in share price on share-based payment tax relief
Deferred tax (credited)/charged directly to equity

(342)

–
(14)

–

Deferred tax assets recognised

–

(807)

Reduction in deferred tax asset on share-based payments

–

(472)

Holdover gain crystallising from prior year

–

124

Losses brought forward utilised

–

(922)

Effect of change in tax rate
Taxation charge/(credit) for the period
(C) ANALYSIS OF DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY
GROUP

(189)

(32)

726

(643)

2012/13
£’000

2011/12
£’000

The deferred tax liability comprises:
Deferred capital gains

(3,102)

(3,098)

Deferred tax liability

(3,102)

(3,098)

£’000

£’000

(3,102)

(3,098)

(94)

–

(3,196)

(3,098)

COMPANY
The deferred tax liability comprises:
Deferred capital gains
Deferred income
Deferred tax liability
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2012/13
£’000

2011/12
£’000

Accelerated capital allowances

499

800

Share based payments

230

472

(D) ANALYSIS OF DEFERRED TAX ASSET
GROUP
The deferred tax asset comprises:

93

7

822

1,279

£’000

£’000

Accelerated capital allowances

593

800

Share based payments

230

329

Other short-term timing differences
Deferred tax asset
COMPANY
The deferred tax asset comprises:

Other short-term timing differences
Deferred tax asset

93

7

916

1,136

(E) MOVEMENT IN DEFERRED TAX ASSET AND LIABILITY
GROUP

£’000

Liability at 28 January 2012

(1,819)

Credit to income due to continuing operations

(447)

Credit to equity due to continuing operations

(14)
(2,280)

Liability at 26 January 2013
COMPANY

£’000

Liability at 28 January 2012

(1,962)

Credit to income due to continuing operations

(318)
(2,280)

Liability at 26 January 2013

At 26 January 2013 the deferred tax asset in respect of capital allowances, share based payments and other short-term temporary
differences was recognised on the basis that the Company is profitable in 2013/14 and forecasts to be profitable in future years.
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11. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per ordinary share is based on the weighted average of 98,312,686 (2011/12: 94,530,752) ordinary shares in issue
during the period and are calculated by reference to the profit attributable to shareholders of £2,385,000 (2011/12: profit of
£6,873,000).
Underlying*** earnings per ordinary share is based on the weighted average of 98,312,686 (2011/12: 94,530,752) ordinary shares in
issue during the period and are calculated by reference to the profit attributable to shareholders of £2,204,000 (2011/12: profit of
£1,543,000).
Diluted earnings per ordinary share is based upon the weighted average of 102,375,453 ordinary shares, which include the effects of
share options and shares under the LTIP of 4,062,767, that were anti-dilutive for the period presented and could dilute earnings per
share in the future and are calculated by reference to the profit attributable to shareholders as stated above.
Basic earnings/(loss) per share
Total (continuing and discontinued operations)
Discontinued operations
Continuing operations

2012/13
pence

2011/12
pence

2.43

7.27

–

(5.64)

2.43

1.63

(0.19)

Exceptionals (net of tax)
Underlying*** basic earnings/(loss) per share
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share
Total (continuing and discontinued operations)
Discontinued operations
Continuing operations

–

2.24

1.63

2012/13
pence

2011/12
pence

2.33

6.81

–

(5.28)

2.33

1.53

(0.18)

Exceptionals (net of tax)

–

2.15

1.53

2012/13
£’000

2011/12
£’000

Final dividend for the year ended 28 January 2012 of 0.4 pence per share

380,732

–

Interim dividend for the year ended 26 January 2013 of 0.2 pence per share

190,366

–

571,098

–

Underlying*** diluted earnings/(loss) per share
*** Underlying represents results before exceptional items as defined in note 1 to the Financial Statements

12. DIVIDEND

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period:

Given the excellent progress made in 2012/13 and the exciting prospects for further growth the Board feels it is appropriate to propose
the payment of a final dividend.
A dividend of 0.7 pence per share is proposed to be paid on 27 June 2013 to all shareholders on the register as at 7 June 2013
(ex dividend date 5 June 2013) and in line with the Board’s policy, will be monitored to ensure we achieve robust dividend cover
over time.
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13. INTANGIBLE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
IT software
£’000

GROUP
COST OR VALUATION:
At 28 January 2012

3,850

Additions

752
4,602

At 26 January 2013
AMORTISATION:
At 28 January 2012

2,792

Charge for the period

579
3,371

At 26 January 2013
NET BOOK VALUE:
At 26 January 2013

1,231

At 28 January 2012

1,058

Amortisation charges are recorded within shops’ selling and marketing costs.
The Group has capitalised £147,000 of IT personnel costs during the year (2011/12: £200,000) which are included within Intangible
Non-Current Asset Additions. These costs relate specifically to IT time incurred on developing the Group’s IT infrastructure. At
26 January 2013, the total cost of IT personnel costs included within Intangible Non-Current Assets was £544,000 (28 January 2012:
£397,000) with associated net book value of £278,000 (28 January 2012: £201,000).

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(A)

GROUP

Property,
plant and
equipment
Leasehold
total improvements
£’000
£’000

Fixtures,
vehicles and
equipment
£’000

Hire
inventory
£’000

53,081

10,865

63,946

3,489

67,435

2,208

1,383

3,591

152

3,743

Total
£’000

COST OR VALUATION:
At 28 January 2012
Additions
Disposals

(725)

(1,994)

(2,719)

–

(2,719)

54,564

10,254

64,818

3,641

68,459

At 28 January 2012

42,893

9,100

51,993

2,566

54,559

Charged in period

2,890

861

3,751

192

3,943

(719)

(1,695)

(2,414)

–

(2,414)

45,064

8,266

53,330

2,758

56,088

At 26 January 2013

9,500

1,988

11,488

883

12,371

At 28 January 2012

10,188

1,765

11,953

923

12,876

At 26 January 2013
DEPRECIATION:

Disposals
At 26 January 2013
NET BOOK VALUE:
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT CONTINUED
Hire
inventory
£’000

COMPANY

Fixtures,
vehicles and
Leasehold
equipment improvements
£’000
£’000

Total
£’000

COST OR VALUATION:
At 28 January 2012

10,865

57,958

3,489

Additions

1,383

3,977

152

5,512

Disposals

(1,994)

(725)

–

(2,719)

10,254

61,210

3,641

75,105

9,100

46,199

2,566

57,865

At 26 January 2013

72,312

DEPRECIATION:
At 28 January 2012
Charged in period

861

4,182

192

5,235

Disposals

(1,695)

(719)

–

(2,414)

At 26 January 2013

8,266

49,662

2,758

60,686

At 26 January 2013

1,988

11,548

883

14,419

At 28 January 2012

1,765

11,759

923

14,447

NET BOOK VALUE:

Leasehold improvements relate to leasehold buildings as the element of land contained in these leases is minimal.
Included within leasehold improvements at 26 January 2013 are £129,000 location premiums (28 January 2012: £138,000). Location
premiums relate to premiums paid to enter a property which is in a desirable location.

(B) COMMITMENTS
Capital commitments for which no provision has been made in the financial statements were as follows:
GROUP AND COMPANY
Contracted

2012/13
£’000

2011/12
£’000

952

2,038

(C) OPERATING LEASES
Total commitments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
2012/13
Land and
buildings
£’000

– within one year
– in the second to fifth year
– over five years

2011/12
Other
£’000

Land and
buildings
£’000

Other
£’000

15,224

14

16,112

36

44,035

13

43,591

30

25,950

–

26,568

–

85,209

27

86,271

66

Land and
buildings
£’000

Other
£’000

Land and
buildings
£’000

Other
£’000

– within one year

1,488

6

833

4

– in the second to fifth year

5,337

9

6,849

31

– over five years

8,400

–

8,431

–

15,225

15

16,113

35

GROUP
Payments falling due:

2012/13

COMPANY

2011/12

Payments falling due:

The majority of these leases are subject to rent review and a small number have contingent rentals payable based on revenue
exceeding a minimum amount in the relevant store.
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15. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS
2012/13
£’000

2011/12
£’000

Subsidiary undertakings cost at the beginning of the period

15,351

15,351

Provision at the beginning of the period

(5,849)

(5,849)

Carrying value at the end of the period

9,502

9,502

COMPANY

The Company has one principal subsidiary, Moss Bros (Ireland) Limited, which is registered in Ireland and whose issued share capital
is wholly owned by the Company. A full list of subsidiaries will be submitted with the Group’s annual return.

16. INVENTORIES
GROUP AND COMPANY
Retail inventory

2012/13
£’000

2011/12
£’000

14,350

14,745

(525)

Retail inventory provisions

(660)

13,825

14,085

2012/13
£’000

2011/12
£’000

157

54

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
GROUP
Trade receivables

467

186

4,042

3,833

4,666

4,073

2012/13
£’000

2011/12
£’000

157

54

2,413

1,838

442

161

3,982

3,796

6,994

5,849

2012/13
£’000

2011/12
£’000

AUTHORISED:
120,000,000 ordinary shares of 5 pence each (2011/12: 120,000,000)

6,000

6,000

ALLOTTED, CALLED UP AND FULLY PAID:
99,311,580 ordinary shares of 5 pence each (2011/12: 94,530,752)

4,965

4,727

Other receivables
Prepayments and accrued income

COMPANY
Trade debtors
Amounts owed by Group undertakings
Other receivables
Prepayments and accrued income

The Directors consider that the carrying value of trade and other receivables approximates to their fair value.

18. SHARE CAPITAL
GROUP AND COMPANY
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19. RESERVES
Share
capital
£’000

Share
premium
£’000

Employee
benefit
trust
£’000

Sharebased
payments
£’000

Hedging
reserve
£’000

Retained
earnings
£’000

Total
£’000

At 29 January 2011

4,727

8,673

(218)

387

–

13,302

26,871

At 29 January 2011

4,727

8,673

(218)

387

–

13,302

26,871

Profit after taxation

–

–

–

–

–

6,873

6,873

Subscription to employee
benefit trust shares

–

–

(486)

–

–

–

(486)

Credit to equity for equity
settled share based payments

–

–

–

928

–

-

928

Movement in deferred tax
on share based payments

-

–

–

144

–

–

144

At 28 January 2012

4,727

8,673

(704)

1,459

–

20,175

34.330

Profit after taxation

–

–

–

–

–

2,385

2,385

GROUP

Cash flow hedging movement

–

–

–

–

28

–

28

Dividends paid

–

–

–

–

–

(571)

(571)

238

–

(238)

–

–

–

–

Subscription to employee
benefit trust shares

–

–

(1,121)

–

–

–

(1,121)

Credit to equity for equity
settled share based payments

–

–

238

(878)

–

926

286

Movement in deferred tax
on share based payments

-

–

–

(14)

–

-

(14)

4,965

8,673

567

28

22,915

35,323

Issue of share capital

At 26 January 2013

(1,825)

Share
capital
£’000

Share
premium
£’000

Acquisition
reserve
£’000

Sharebased
payments
£’000

Employee
benefit
trust
£’000

Hedging
reserve
£’000

Retained
earnings
£’000

Total
£’000

At 28 January 2012

4,727

8,673

4,370

1,315

(704)

–

15,960

34,341

Profit after taxation

–

–

–

–

–

–

2,756

2,756

Cash flow hedging
movement

–

–

–

–

–

28

–

28

COMPANY

Dividends paid

–

–

–

–

–

–

(571)

(571)

238

–

–

–

(238)

–

–

–

Credit to equity for equity
settled share based
payments

–

–

–

(734)

238

–

782

286

Subscription to employee
benefit trust shares

–

–

–

–

(1,121)

–

–

(1,121)

4,965

8,673

4,370

581

(1,825)

28

18,927

35,719

Issue of share capital

At 26 January 2013

The Group has an employee benefit trust which holds 4,128,686 shares (2011/12: 1,801,000) in the Company for the benefit of the
Group’s employees. None of its shares has been allocated to a specific scheme. At 26 January 2013 the shares had a carrying value of
£1,825,454 and a market value of £2,931,367 (2011/12: carrying value of £704,000 and market value of £639,000).
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RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
COMPANY
Opening shareholders’ funds
Profit for the period
Dividends paid
Hedging reserve

2012/13
£’000

2011/12
£’000

34,341

27,391

2,756

6,508

(571)

–

28

–

286

Credit to equity for equity settled share-based payments

928

(1,121)

Subscription to employee benefit trust shares

(486)

1,378

6,950

35,719

34,341

2012/13
£’000

2011/12
£’000

Trade payables

3,907

4,307

Other payables including taxation and social security

4,130

3,867

Net movement in equity during the period
Closing Shareholders’ funds

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
GROUP

Accruals and deferred income

6,712

6,791

14,749

14,965

1,641

1,723

459

454

2,100

2,177

2,030

1,690

4,130

3,867

2012/13
£’000

2011/12
£’000

3,905

4,303

12,182

12,182

4,230

3,914

Other payables including taxation and social security comprise:
Other taxes
Social security
Other payables

COMPANY
Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade creditors
Amounts owed to group undertakings
Other creditors including taxation and social security
Accruals and deferred income

6,597

6,713

26,914

27,112

1,606

1,677

453

449

2,059

2,126

2,171

1,788

4,230

3,914

Other creditors including taxation and social security comprise:
Other taxes
Social security
Other creditors

The fair value of creditors is not materially different to the values disclosed above.
The Group’s exposure to currency and liquidity risk related to trade and other payables is disclosed in note 24. The fair value of the
trade and other payables is not materially different to the values disclosed above.
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21. OTHER PAYABLES DUE AFTER ONE YEAR
GROUP
Accruals and deferred income

COMPANY

2012/13
£’000

2011/12
£’000

1,741

1,647

2012/13
£’000

2011/12
£’000

1,230

1,044

Amounts falling due after one year
Accruals and deferred income

22. PROVISIONS
Property
provisions
£’000

GROUP AND COMPANY
At 28 January 2012

2,251

Additional provision during the period*

1,579

Released during the period

(181)

Utilisation during the period

(466)
3,183

At 26 January 2013
*

Relates to the additional provision for two loss-making stores included within exceptional items as well as the provision for two other stores, which
are now being provided for.

2012/13
£’000
Current
Non-current

2011/12
£’000

564

567

2,619

1,684

3,183

2,251

The provision is the estimated future cost of the Group’s onerous property lease contracts. This has been discounted to reflect the
time value of money.

23. PENSIONS
The Group currently operates a defined contribution scheme. As at 26 January 2013 there were £33,661 outstanding contributions
relating to the defined contribution scheme (28 January 2012: £29,000).

24. ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(A) MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The Company’s financial instruments comprise cash and various items such as derivative forward foreign currency transactions,
trade receivables and payables that arise directly from its operations.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to manage the Company’s liquidity.
The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate
risk. The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks.
CREDIT RISK
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is maintained on an ongoing basis. At the Balance Sheet date,
there were no significant concentrations of credit risk.
The carrying amount of each financial asset represents the maximum credit exposure.
LIQUIDITY RISK
Cash balances are managed and monitored on a daily basis and the peaks and troughs in the cash cycle are well known through
experience. The Company continues to operate the business from a debt free position and current trading levels generate a healthy
cash flow.

62

I MOSS BROS GROUP PLC shop on-line at www.moss.co.uk

Job No: 14120

Proof Event: 5

Customer: Moss Bros

Project Title: Report & Accounts 2012/13

Park Communications Ltd

Alpine Way

T: 0207 055 6500

London E6 6LA
F: 020 7055 6600

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK
The Company’s policy is to mitigate all currency exposures on purchases either by buying the amount of currency required at the
time the obligation is known and holding it in a designated bank account until it is needed or by taking out forward foreign currency
contracts. Details of forward foreign currency contracts outstanding as at 26 January 2013 are detailed in note (E) below.
INTEREST RATE RISK
Interest rate risk arises from investment of cash balances on short-term deposits. The Company is not exposed to any other interest
rate risk.

(B) FINANCIAL ASSETS
(i) Trade receivables
Carrying value
2012/13
2011/12
£’000
£’000

GROUP AND COMPANY
Trade receivables
Allowance for doubtful debts

226

85

(69)

(31)

157

54

The Company recognised an allowance for doubtful debts where the trade receivable was considered irrecoverable on the basis of
ageing and historical experience. In the current period £69,000 was provided for (2011/12: £31,000). If the Company believes that a
specific balance is irrecoverable, it will be written off. The Company does not require collateral in respect of these financial assets.
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
Floating rate financial assets
2012/13
2011/12
£’000
£’000

GROUP
Currency

24,534

Sterling

23,106

Other

1,189

226

Total

25,723

23,332

Floating rate financial assets
2012/13
2011/12
£’000
£’000

COMPANY
Currency
Sterling
Other
Total

24,534

23,106

589

133

25,123

23,239

Cash and cash equivalents generate interest income on short-term deposits. The Company has no fixed rate financial instruments.
Based on the average cash balance, the effective interest rate on financial assets is 0.59% (2011/12: 0.48%).

(C) FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
There were no financial liabilities after excluding derivative financial instruments, as detailed below, and current trade payables as at
26 January 2013 (2011/12: £nil).

(D) FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
As at 26 January 2013 and 28 January 2012, there was no material difference between the fair values and book values of the
Company’s financial assets or liabilities.
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24. ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CONTINUED
(E) DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

GROUP AND COMPANY

Current
2012/13
£’000

Current
2011/12
£’000

8

–

8

–

Current
2012/13
£’000

Current
2011/12
£’000

–

22

–

22

Financial assets designated as cash flow hedges
Forward foreign currency contracts

GROUP AND COMPANY
Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
Forward foreign currency contracts

In the current year the Group entered into several forward foreign currency contracts, to protect the cost to the Group of 2013/14
inventory purchases and hedge against the risk of exchange rate fluctuations. During 2012/13 the Group had entered into £3,630,000
(2011/12: £1,061,000) US dollar forward contracts which were outstanding at 26 January 2013. In the current year, these have been
designated as cash flow hedges. The associated fair value gains and losses will be transferred to inventories when the purchases
occur during the next 12 months, at which time the amount deferred in equity will be reclassified to profit and loss. At 26 January
2013, £28,000 has been deferred in equity (2011/12: £nil). The ineffective portion of cash flow hedges recognised in “Other gains and
losses” within profit or loss is £2,000 (2011/12: £nil).
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimism of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from 2011/12.
The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash equivalents, and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent,
comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings as a disclosed in note 19.
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
The Group’s risk management committee reviews the capital structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the committee
considers the cost of capital and risks associated with each class of capital.
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted (including criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement
and the bases for recognition of income and expenses) for each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are
disclosed in note 1.
CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The net fair value of derivatives by hedge designation at the balance sheet date is:
GROUP AND COMPANY

2012/13
£’000

2011/12
£’000

8

–

8

–

2012/13
£’000

2011/12
£’000

–

22

–

22

Financial assets
Cash flow hedges

GROUP AND COMPANY
Financial liabilities
Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
Held for trading
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2012/13
£’000

GROUP AND COMPANY

2011/12
£’000

Effect of 10% appreciation in foreign exchange rates on derivative cash flow hedges
Sterling against US Dollar
Deferred in equity – Hedge Reserve

(2)

–

(2)

–

The impact of changes in foreign exchange rates on cash flow hedges results from retranslation of forward purchases of US Dollars
used to hedge 2013/14 inventory purchases. A negative number indicates a decrease in amounts deferred in equity where Sterling
strengthens 10% against the US Dollar. The associated fair value gains and losses are deferred in equity until the purchases occur.
The sensitivity analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying amount of trade and other payables
and receivables, due to the low associated sensitivity, and are reported before the effect of tax. It has been prepared on the basis that
the Group’s hedging activities, hedge accounting designations and derivate contracts remain constant, reflecting the position at
26 January 2013. Consequently, the analysis relates to the position at that date and is not necessarily representative of 2012/13 then
ended. In preparing the sensitivity analysis, it is assumed that all hedges are fully effective.
The effect shown above would be reversed in the event of an equal and opposite change in foreign exchange rate.

25. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
HUGO BOSS
During 2011/12, Moss Bros Group PLC entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement with Hugo Boss UK Limited, relating
to the disposal of the Hugo Boss Franchised Business, for a cash consideration of £18,209,000, fully paid by 28 January 2012. The
transfer of the business to Hugo Boss UK Limited took place during 2011/12.
The proceeds from the disposal provided the Company with funding to eliminate debt and invest in the core business.
A profit before taxation of £8,246,000 arose on the disposal of the Hugo Boss Franchise Business, being the proceeds of £18,209,000
less the carrying amount of the net assets attributable of £9,366,000 and £597,000 associated legal and professional fees and other
expenses.

CECIL GEE
During 2011/12, Moss Bros Group PLC disposed of 8 Cecil Gee stores to JD Sports Fashion plc, for a cash consideration of £1,614,000
which has been fully paid.
A loss before taxation of £717,000 arose on the disposal of the Cecil Gee business, being the proceeds of £1,614,000 less the carrying
amount of the net assets attributable £2,212,000 and £119,000 associated legal and professional fees and other expenses.
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25. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS CONTINUED
The results of the discontinued operations of the Hugo Boss Franchise Business and Cecil Gee Business, which have been included in
the prior year comparative to the consolidated income statement, were as follows:
52 weeks to 28 January 2012
£’000
£’000
£’000
UNDERLYING***

Hugo Boss

Cecil Gee

Total

Revenue

4,283

3,241

7,524

Cost of sales

(2,009)

(1,751)

(3,760)

Gross profit

2,274

1,490

3,764

Shops’ selling and marketing costs

(2,087)

(1,701)

(3,788)

187

(211)

(24)

–

–

–

Operating profit/(loss)
Investment revenues
Financial costs
Profit/(loss) before taxation
Taxation charge
Underlying*** profit/(loss) after taxation

–

–

–

187

(211)

(24)

–

–

–

187

(211)

(24)

–

–

–

EXCEPTIONALS
Other exceptionals
Profit on disposal of discontinued operations

8,246

(717)

7,529

Taxation charge on exceptionals(1)

(1,946)

(229)

(2,175)

Exceptionals profit/(loss) after taxation

6,300

(946)

5,354

TOTAL PROFIT/(LOSS) AFTER TAXATION

6,487

(1,157)

5,330

*** Underlying represents results before exceptional items as defined in note 1 of the Financial Statements
(1) The tax charge £2,175,000 in respect to discontinued operations relates to the gain on Hugo Boss and Cecil Gee disposal

There were no discontinued operations in the current year.

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Group had no material related party transactions which might reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by users of
these Financial Statements. Directors’ remuneration is disclosed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 23 to 31. Other
related parties are key management (employees below Director level who have authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the Company) and major Shareholders. The key management personnel compensation is as follows:
2012/13
£’000
Short-term employee benefits
Termination payments
Contributions to defined contribution plans
Share-based payments

2011/12
£’000

1,138

892

–

164

51

32

290

157

1,479

1,245

Total remuneration is included in administrative expenses and relates to 10 employees in the period ended 26 January 2013
(2011/12: 10).

TRADING TRANSACTIONS
The Group entered into the following transactions with related parties who are not members of the Group:
Berwin & Berwin Limited; a key supplier, was considered a related party of the Group during a part of the period because a
Non-Executive Director of Moss Bros Group PLC, Simon Berwin, is the Chief Executive and a significant shareholder of Berwin
& Berwin Limited. Simon Berwin stood down from the Board of Moss Bros Group PLC on 29 May 2012, therefore Berwin &
Berwin Limited is no longer considered to be a related party from this date. During the period whilst Berwin & Berwin Limited
was considered a related party, being 29 January 2012 to 29 May 2012, the Group purchased £2,798,000 of inventory from them
(28 January 2012: £7,174,000). £313,307 was payable to Berwin & Berwin Limited as at 26 January 2013 (28 January 2012: £455,000).
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Baumler AG was considered a related party of the Group during part of the period because on 2 December 2009, Berwin & Berwin
Limited acquired Baumler AG under a joint venture. Baumler AG is no longer considered to be a related party from 29 May 2012, when
Simon Berwin stood down from the Board of Moss Bros Group PLC. The Group made no purchases in the current period (28 January
2012: £9,000). There was no outstanding liability with Baumler at year end (28 January 2012: £nil).
Hawkpoint Partners Limited was considered a related party of the Group because the Chairman of Moss Bros Group PLC, Debbie
Hewitt’s husband was a Non-Executive Director of Collins Stewart plc, who is the parent company of Hawkpoint Partners Limited.
Debbie Hewitt’s husband stood down from the Board of Collins Stewart plc on 22 March 2012; therefore Hawkpoint Partners Limited
is no longer considered to be a related party from this date. The Group made no transactions in the current period (28 January 2012:
£251,000).
Oliver Sweeney Trading Limited is considered a related party of the Group because a Non-Executive Director of Moss Bros Group
PLC, Maurice Heffgott, is the Chairman of Oliver Sweeney Trading Limited. The Group made no purchases in the current period
(28 January 2012: £4,000). Purchases of goods and services from related parties were made on an arm’s length basis, consistent with
the previous year.
Capewalk Limited was considered a related party of the Group because Brian Brick, Chief Executive Officer of Moss Bros Group
PLC, is a Director of Capewalk Limited. On 21 November 2011, Moss Bros Group PLC entered into a long-term lease with Capewalk
Limited, the landlord, for a store in Aylesbury which was in place at 28 January 2012. The lease was no longer in place as at
26 January 2013.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION. If you are in any doubt as to what action to take,
you should consult your stockbroker, solicitor, accountant or other appropriate independent professional adviser authorised
under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000. If you have sold or otherwise transferred all your shares in Moss Bros Group
PLC, please forward this document and the accompanying form of proxy to the person through whom the sale or transfer was
effected, for transmission to the purchaser or transferee.
A form of proxy for the Annual General Meeting is enclosed. Whether or not you intend to be present at the meeting, please complete
the form of proxy and return it in accordance with the instructions printed on it so as to reach Moss Bros Group PLC’s registrar no
later than 12 noon on 3 June 2013. Alternatively, you can register your proxy vote electronically, either by means of a website provided
by the Company’s registrar or, if you are a CREST member, by using the service provided by Euroclear. Further details are given in the
notes to this document. Completion and return of the form of proxy will not prevent you from attending and voting at the meeting in
person, should you so wish.
Notice is hereby given that the ninety-ninth Annual General Meeting of Moss Bros Group PLC (the “Company”) will be held at
8 St. John’s Hill, London SW11 1SA on 5 June 2013 at 12 noon for the transaction of the following business:
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS:
1. To receive the Directors’ and Auditors’ report and the accounts for the financial year ended 26 January 2013.
2. To approve the Directors’ remuneration report for the financial year ended 26 January 2013.
3. To reappoint Brian Brick as a Director of the Company.
4. To reappoint Bryan Portman as a Director of the Company.
5. To reappoint Zoe Morgan as a Director of the Company.
6. To reappoint Maurice Helfgott as a Director of the Company.
7. To reappoint Debbie Hewitt as a Director of the Company.
8. To reappoint Robin Piggott as a Director of the Company.
9. To reappoint Deloitte LLP as the auditor of the Company until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting.
10. To authorise the Directors to set the remuneration of the independent auditor as they shall in their discretion see fit.
11. To declare a final dividend for the year ended 26 January 2013 of 0.7 pence per ordinary share, payable on 27 June 2013 to
ordinary shareholders on the register at the close of business on 7 June 2013.
12. That the Directors be generally and unconditionally authorised for the purposes of section 551 of the Companies Act 2006
(the “Act”) to exercise all the powers of the Company to allot shares (as defined in section 540 of the Act) and grant rights to
subscribe for, or convert security into, shares:
(a) up to an aggregate nominal amount (within the meaning of section 551(3) and (6) of the Act) of £1,655,193 (representing
33,103,860 shares) (such amount to be reduced by the nominal amount allotted or granted under (b) below in excess of such
sum); and
(b) comprising equity securities (as defined in section 560 of the Act) up to an aggregate nominal amount (within the meaning
of section 551(3) and (6) of the Act) of £3,310,386 (representing 66,207,720 shares) (such amount to be reduced by any
allotments or grants made under (a) above) in connection with or pursuant to an offer by way of a rights issue in favour of
holders of ordinary shares in proportion (as nearly as practicable) to the respective number of ordinary shares held by them
on the record date for such allotment (and holders of any other class of equity securities entitled to participate therein or if
the Directors consider it necessary, as permitted by the rights of those securities), but subject to such exclusions or other
arrangements as the Directors may consider necessary or appropriate to deal with fractional entitlements, treasury shares,
record dates or legal, regulatory or practical difficulties which may arise under the laws of, or the requirements of, any
regulatory body or stock exchange in any territory or any other matter whatsoever,
these authorisations to expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company (or, if earlier, on 6 June
2014), (save that the Company may before such expiry make any offer or agreement which would or might require shares to be
allotted or rights to be granted, after such expiry and the Directors may allot shares, or grant rights to subscribe for or to convert
any security into shares, in pursuance of any such offer or agreement as if the authorisations conferred hereby had not expired).
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SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS:
13. That, subject to the passing of resolution 12 set out above, the Directors be generally empowered pursuant to section 570 of the
Companies Act 2006 (the “Act”) to allot equity securities (as defined in section 560 of the Act) of the Company for cash pursuant
to the authority conferred by resolution 12 above as if section 561 of the Act did not apply to any such allotment provided that this
power shall be limited to:
(a) the allotment of equity securities in connection with or pursuant to an offer of or invitation to acquire equity securities in
favour of the holders of ordinary shares of the Company in proportion (as nearly as practicable) to their respective holding of
ordinary shares on the record date of such allotment, subject only to such exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors
may consider necessary or appropriate to deal with fractional entitlements, record dates or legal, regulatory or practical
problems which may arise under the laws of, or the requirements of, any regulatory body or stock exchange in any territory or
any other matter whatsoever; and
(b) the allotment (otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraph (a) above) of equity securities up to an aggregate nominal amount
of £248,278.95,
and the power hereby granted shall expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company (or, if earlier,
on 25 May 2014) save that the Company may before such expiry make an offer or agreement which would or might require equity
securities to be allotted after such expiry in which case the Directors may allot equity securities in pursuance of such offer or
agreement as if the power conferred hereby had not expired.
14. That the Company be generally and unconditionally authorised for the purposes of section 701 of the Companies Act 2006 (the
“Act”) to make one or more market purchases (within the meaning of section 693(4) of the Act) of any ordinary shares of 5p each
in the capital of the Company on such terms and in such manner as the Directors may from time to time determine provided that:
(a) the maximum aggregate number of ordinary shares hereby authorised to be purchased is 9,931,158 ordinary shares of 5p each
(representing approximately 10 per cent. of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company at 26 January 2013);
(b) the minimum price which may be paid for each ordinary share shall be 5p which is an amount exclusive of expenses, if any;
(c) the maximum price (exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for each ordinary share is the higher of:
(i) 105 per cent. of the average of the middle market quotations for the ordinary shares of the Company as derived from the
Daily Official List of the London Stock Exchange plc for the five business days immediately preceding the day on which
such share purchase is made; and
(ii) the higher of the last independent trade and the highest current independent bid on the trading venues where the
purchase is carried out, as stipulated by article 5(1) of the EU Buyback and Stabilisation Regulation 2003 (No. 2273/2003);
(d) unless previously renewed, revoked or varied, the authority conferred by this resolution shall expire on 18 months from the
passing of the resolution or, if earlier, at the conclusion of the Company’s next Annual General Meeting in 2014 save that the
Company may, before the expiry of the authority granted by this resolution, enter into a contract to purchase ordinary shares
which would or might be executed wholly or partly after the expiry of such authority, and may make purchases of ordinary
shares pursuant to it as if this authority had not expired.
15. That a general meeting of the Company (other than an annual general meeting) may be called on not less than 14 clear days’
notice.

By Order of the Board

Robin Piggott
Company Secretary
9 April 2013

Registered Office:
8 St. Johns Hill
London
SW11 1SA
Registered in England and Wales No. 00134995
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NOTES
1. Copies of the executive Directors’ service contracts with the Company and copies of the Non-Executive Directors’ letters of
appointment with the Company will be available for inspection at the registered office of the Company during normal business
hours on any weekday (Saturdays, Sundays and public bank holidays excepted) from the date of this notice until the close of the
Company’s 2013 Annual General Meeting on 5 June 2013 and will also be available for inspection at the place of the meeting for
at least 15 minutes prior to and throughout the meeting. A copy of this notice and other information required by section 311A of
the Companies Act 2006 (the “Act”) can be found at www.mossbros.co.uk/investors/annual_reports.htm.
2. Pursuant to regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001, the Company specifies that in order to have the right
to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (and also for the purpose of determining how many votes a person entitled to
attend and vote may cast), a person must be entered on the register of members of the Company at 6.00 p.m. on the date which is
two days before the day of the meeting (or any adjourned meeting). Changes to entries on the register of members after this time
shall be disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend or vote at the meeting.
3. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint a proxy to attend, speak and vote in their place.
A member may appoint more than one proxy in relation to the Annual General Meeting provided that each proxy is appointed to
exercise the rights attached to a different share or shares held by that member. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.
4. A Form of Proxy for the 2013 Annual General Meeting is enclosed. To be valid, the completed and signed Form of Proxy together
with the power of attorney or authority, if any, under which it is signed (or a duly certified copy of any such power or authority)
must be lodged with the Company’s registrars, Capita Registrars at PXS, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, BR3 4TU as soon as
possible but not less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting. If you are a CREST member, see note 5 below. Alternatively, a
member may appoint a proxy electronically, or may wish to vote electronically online, at www.capitashareportal.com. Please see
the form of proxy for further details.
Return of a completed Form of Proxy will not preclude a member from attending and voting personally at the meeting.
5. Alternatively, if you are a member of CREST, you may register the appointment of a proxy by using the CREST electronic proxy
appointment service. Further details are contained below.
CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may do so
for the Annual General Meeting and any adjournment(s) thereof by using the procedures, and to the address, described in the
CREST Manual (available via www.euroclear.com/CREST) subject to the provisions of the Company’s articles of association.
CREST personal members or other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members who have appointed a voting service
provider(s), should refer to their CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s), who will be able to take the appropriate action on
their behalf.
In order for a proxy appointment or instruction made using the CREST service to be valid, the appropriate CREST message (a
“CREST Proxy Instruction”) must be properly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear UK and Ireland Limited’s (“Euroclear”)
specifications and must contain the information required for such instructions, as described in the CREST Manual. The message,
regardless of whether it constitutes the appointment of a proxy or an amendment to the instruction given to a previously
appointed proxy, must, in order to be valid, be transmitted so as to be received by the issuer’s agent (ID RA10) by the latest time(s)
for receipt of proxy appointments specified in the notice of the Annual General Meeting. For this purpose, the time of receipt will
be taken to be the time (as determined by the time stamp applied to the message by the CREST Applications Host) from which
the issuer’s agent is able to retrieve the message by enquiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST. After this time any
change of instructions to proxies appointed through CREST should be communicated to the appointee through other means.
CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service provider(s) should note that Euroclear does not
make available special procedures in CREST for any particular messages. Normal system timings and limitations will therefore
apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions. It is the responsibility of the CREST member concerned to take (or, if
the CREST member is a CREST personal member or sponsored member or has appointed a voting service provider(s), to procure
that his CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s) take(s)) such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message is
transmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular time. In this connection, CREST members and, where applicable,
their CREST sponsors or voting service provider(s) are referred, in particular, to those sections of the CREST Manual concerning
practical limitations of the CREST system and timings.
The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5)(a) of the
Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001.
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6. Any person to whom this notice is sent who is a person currently nominated by a member of the Company to enjoy information
rights under section 146 of the Act (a “nominated person”) may have a right under an agreement between him/her and such
member by whom he/she was nominated, to be appointed, or to have someone else appointed, as a proxy for the Annual General
Meeting. If a nominated person has no such proxy appointment right or does not wish to exercise it, he/she may have a right
under such an agreement to give instructions to the member concerned as to the exercise of voting rights. The statement of the
above rights of the members in relation to the appointment of proxies does not apply to a nominated person. Such rights can only
be exercised by a member of the Company.
7. Any corporation which is a member can appoint one or more corporate representatives who may exercise on its behalf all of its
powers as a member provided that they do not do so in relation to the same shares.
8. Any member attending the Annual General Meeting has the right to ask questions. The Company must cause to be answered
any such question relating to the business being dealt with at the meeting but no such answer need be given if (a) to do so would
interfere unduly with the preparation for the meeting or involve the disclosure of confidential information, (b) the answer has
already been given on a website in the form of an answer to a question, or (c) it is undesirable in the interests of the Company or
the good order of the meeting that the question be answered.
9. Under section 527 of the Act, members meeting the threshold requirements set out in that section have the right to require the
Company to publish on a website a statement setting out any matter relating to: (i) the audit of the Company’s accounts (including
the auditor’s report and the conduct of the audit) that are to be laid before the Annual General Meeting; or (ii) any circumstance
connected with an auditor of the Company ceasing to hold office since the previous meeting at which annual accounts and reports
were laid in accordance with section 437 of the Act, (in each case) that the members propose to raise at the Annual General
Meeting. The Company may not require the members requesting any such website publication to pay its expenses in complying
with sections 527 or 528 of the Act. Where the Company is required to place a statement on a website under section 527 of the
Act, it must forward the statement to the Company’s auditor not later than the time when it makes the statement available on the
website. The business which may be dealt with at the meeting includes any statement that the Company has been required under
section 527 of the Act to publish on a website.
10. As at 9 April 2013 (being the last practicable date prior to the publication of this notice) the Company’s issued share capital
consists of 99,311,580 ordinary shares, carrying one vote each. Therefore, the total voting rights in the Company as at that date
are 99,311,580.
11. You may not use any electronic address (within the meaning of section 333(4) of the Act) provided in this notice of meeting (or in
any related documents including the proxy form) to communicate with the Company for any purposes other than those expressly
stated.
12. Under section 338 and section 338A of the Act, members meeting the threshold requirements in those sections have the right
to require the Company (i) to give, to members of the Company entitled to receive notice of the Annual General Meeting, notice
of a resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting and/or (ii) to include in the business
to be dealt with at the meeting any matter (other than a proposed resolution) which may be properly included in the business.
A resolution may properly be moved or a matter may properly be included in the business unless (a) (in the case of a resolution
only) it would, if passed, be ineffective (whether by reason of inconsistency with any enactment or the Company’s constitution
or otherwise), (b) it is defamatory of any person, or (c) it is frivolous or vexatious. Such a request may be in hard copy form or in
electronic form, must identify the resolution of which notice is to be given or the matter to be included in the business, must be
authorised by the person or persons making it, must be received by the Company not later than the date 6 clear weeks before the
meeting, and (in the case of a matter to be included in the business only) must be accompanied by a statement setting out the
grounds for the request.
13. Arrangements will be put in place at the meeting in order to facilitate voting by representatives of members which are
corporations on a poll (if required) in accordance with the procedures set out in the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators’ January 2008 guidance note on ‘Proxies and Corporate Representatives at General Meetings’.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
CONTINUED

EXPLANATORY NOTES
1. Resolution 2. This resolution is to approve the Directors’ remuneration report for the financial year ended on 26 January 2013.
You can find the report on pages 23 to 31 of the annual report and accounts for the year ended 26 January 2013.
2. Resolutions 3 to 8. As required by the UK Corporate Governance Code, biographical details of each of the Directors standing
for re-election appear on page 16 of the annual report and accounts for the year ended 26 January 2013. Under the Company’s
articles of association, one-third of the Directors are required to retire by rotation each year. However, in accordance with the
UK Corporate Governance Code, all the Directors will submit themselves for annual re-election by shareholders. The Chairman
is satisfied that, following individual formal performance evaluations, the performance of the Directors standing for re-election
continues to be effective and to demonstrate commitment to the role.
3. Resolution 12. Your Directors may allot shares and grant rights to subscribe for, or convert any security into, shares only if
authorised to do so by shareholders. The authority granted at the last Annual General Meeting is due to expire at this year’s
Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, resolution 12 will be proposed as an ordinary resolution to grant new authorities to allot
shares and grant rights to subscribe for, or convert any security into, shares. If given, these authorities will expire at the Annual
General Meeting in 2014 or on 25 May 2014, whichever is the earlier.
Paragraph (a) of resolution 12 will allow the Directors to allot ordinary shares up to a maximum nominal amount of £1,655,193,
representing approximately one-third (33.33 per cent.) of the Company’s existing issued share capital and calculated as at
9 April 2013 (being the latest practicable date prior to publication of this document). In accordance with the latest institutional
guidelines issued by the Association of British Insurers (the “ABI”), paragraph (b) of resolution 12 will also allow Directors to
allot, including the ordinary shares referred to in paragraph (a) of resolution 12, further ordinary shares in connection with a
pre-emptive offer by way of a rights issue to ordinary shareholders up to a maximum nominal amount of £3,310,386, representing
approximately two-thirds (66.67 per cent.) of the Company’s existing issued share capital calculated as at 9 April 2013. The
Directors have no present intention of exercising this authority. However, if they do exercise the authority, the Directors intend
to follow emerging best practice as regards its use (including, where appropriate, the Directors standing for re-election) as
recommended by the ABI.
As at 9 April 2013 the Company holds no treasury shares.
4. Resolution 13. Your Directors also require a power from shareholders to allot equity securities for cash and otherwise than to
existing shareholders pro rata to their holdings. The power granted at the last Annual General Meeting is due to expire at this
year’s Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, resolution 13 will be proposed as a special resolution to grant such a power. Apart
from offers or invitations in proportion to the respective number of shares held, the power will be limited to the allotment of
equity securities for cash up to an aggregate nominal value of £248,278.95 (being five per cent. of the Company’s issued ordinary
share capital at 9 April 2013, the latest practicable date prior to publication of this notice). If given, this power will expire on
6 June 2014 or at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting in 2014, whichever is the earlier. Your Directors will have due
regard to institutional guidelines in relation to any exercise of this power, in particular the requirement for advance consultation
and explanation before making any non pre-emptive cash issue pursuant to this resolution which exceeds 7.5 per cent. of the
Company’s issued share capital in any rolling three year period.
5. Resolution 14. This resolution will give the Company authority to purchase its own shares in the markets up to a limit of 10 per
cent. of its issued ordinary share capital. The maximum and minimum prices are stated in the resolution. Your Directors believe
that it is advantageous for the Company to have this flexibility to make market purchases of its own shares. Your Directors will
exercise this authority only if they are satisfied that a purchase would result in an increase in expected earnings per share and
would be in the interests of shareholders generally.
In the event that shares are purchased, they would either be cancelled (and the number of shares in issue would be reduced
accordingly) or, in accordance with the Act, be retained as treasury shares. [The Company will consider holding repurchased
shares pursuant to the authority conferred by this resolution as treasury shares. This would give the Company the ability to
re-issue treasury shares quickly and cost effectively and would provide the Company with additional flexibility in the management
of its capital base.]
As at 9 April 2013, the total number of options over shares that were outstanding under all of the Company’s share option
plans was 3,349,042, which if exercised would represent 3.37 per cent. of the Company’s issued share capital at that date. If the
Company were to purchase its own shares to the fullest possible extent of its authority from shareholders (existing and being
sought), this number of outstanding options could potentially represent 3.75 per cent. of the issued share capital of the Company.
6. Resolution 15. Changes made to the Act by the Companies (Shareholders’ Rights) Regulations 2009 increase the notice period
required for general meetings of the Company to at least 21 clear days unless shareholders approve a shorter notice period,
which cannot however be less than 14 clear days. (Annual General Meetings will continue to be held on at least 21 clear days’
notice.)
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Until the coming into force of the Companies (Shareholders’ Rights) Regulations 2009 on 3 August 2009, the Company was able to
call general meetings other than an annual general meeting on at least 14 clear days’ notice without obtaining such shareholder
approval. In order to preserve this ability, resolution 15 seeks the necessary shareholder approval. The approval will be effective
until the Company’s next Annual General Meeting, when it is intended that a similar resolution will be proposed.
The flexibility offered by this resolution will be used where, taking into account the circumstances, the directors consider this
appropriate in relation to the business to be considered at the meeting.
Note that the changes to the Act mean that, in order to be able to call a general meeting on less than 21 clear days’ notice, the
Company must make a means of electronic voting available to all shareholders for that meeting.
7. Recommendation
Your Directors believe that all the proposed resolutions to be considered at the 2013 Annual General Meeting as set out in this
document are in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. Accordingly, your Directors unanimously
recommend that you vote in favour of them as they intend to do in respect of their own beneficial holdings.
8. Note from the Chairman:
“I can confirm, as required by the UK Corporate Governance Code, that having fully evaluated their performances, the Board is of
the view that each of the Directors offering themselves for re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting continue to be effective
and to demonstrate commitment to their role.”

Debbie Hewitt
Chairman
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MOSS BROS GROUP PLC
FORM OF PROXY FOR USE BY SHAREHOLDERS AT THE NINETY-NINTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF MOSS BROS
GROUP PLC (THE “COMPANY”) TO BE HELD AT 12 NOON ON 5 JUNE 2013 AT 8 ST. JOHN’S HILL, LONDON SW11 1SA.
Please read the notice of meeting and the explanatory notes before completing this proxy form.
I/We (name(s) in full) (IN BLOCK CAPITALS PLEASE)
of (address(es))
being the holder(s) of ordinary shares of 5p each in the capital of the Company, hereby appoint the Chairman, or failing him the
Senior Non-executive Director, or
to act as my/our proxy to exercise all or any of my/our rights to attend, speak and to vote in respect of my/our voting entitlement on
my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at 12 noon on 5 June 2013 and at any adjournment thereof.
If you want your proxy to vote in a certain way on the resolutions specified, please place a mark in the relevant boxes. If you fail to
select any of the given options, your proxy can vote as he or she chooses or can decide not to vote at all. The proxy can do this on any
resolution put to the meeting.
Please tick here if this proxy appointment is one of multiple appointments being made.
(For the appointment of more than one proxy, please refer to note 1 overleaf.)
For
Resolution 1

Resolution 3

To receive the accounts and reports of the directors and auditors
for the financial year ended 26 January 2013
To approve the Directors’ remuneration report for the financial
year ended 26 January 2013
To reappoint Brian Brick as a Director of the Company

Resolution 4

To reappoint Bryan Portman as a Director of the Company

Resolution 5

To reappoint Zoe Morgan as a Director of the Company

Resolution 6

To reappoint Maurice Helfgott as a Director of the Company

Resolution 7

To reappoint Debbie Hewitt as a Director of the Company

Resolution 8

To reappoint Robin Piggott as a Director of the Company

Resolution 9

To reappoint Deloitte LLP as auditor of the Company

Resolution 2

Against

Vote Withheld Discretion

Resolution 10 To authorise the Directors to set the remuneration of the auditor
Resolution 11 To declare a final dividend for the year ended 26 January 2013
of 0.7 pence per share
Resolution 12 To authorise the Directors to allot shares pursuant to section 551
of the Companies Act 2006
Resolution 13 To authorise the Directors to disapply pre-emption rights
pursuant to section 570 of the Companies Act 2006
Resolution 14 To authorise the Company to make market purchases of its
ordinary shares pursuant to section 701 of the Companies Act 2006
Resolution 15 To approve general meetings of the Company (other than annual
general meetings) to be held on not less than 14 clear days’ notice
Signature
Dated this

day of

2013

✃

To facilitate arrangements for the meeting, please tick here (without commitment on your part) if you propose to attend
the meeting.
NOTES
1. To appoint as a proxy a person other than the Chairman of the meeting insert the full name in the space provided. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.
You can also appoint more than one proxy provided each proxy is appointed to exercise the rights attached to a different share or shares held by you. The following
options are available:
(a) To appoint the Chairman as your sole proxy in respect of all your shares, simply fill in any voting instructions in the appropriate box and sign and date the Form
of Proxy.
(b) To appoint a person other than the Chairman as your sole proxy in respect of all your shares, delete the words ‘the Chairman, or failing him the Senior
Non-Executive Director, or’, and insert the name of your proxy in the spaces provided. Then fill in any voting instructions in the appropriate box and sign and
date the Form of Proxy.
(c) To appoint more than one proxy, you may photocopy this form. Please indicate the proxy holder’s name and the number of shares in relation to which they are
authorised to act as your proxy (which, in aggregate, should not exceed the number of shares held by you). Please also indicate if the proxy instruction is one
of multiple instructions being given. If you wish to appoint the Chairman as one of your multiple proxies, simply write ‘the Chairman of the Meeting’. All forms
must be signed and should be returned together in the same envelope.
2. Unless otherwise indicated the proxy will vote as he thinks fit or, at his discretion, abstain from voting.
3. The Form of Proxy must arrive at Capita Registrars, The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, BR3 4TU during usual business hours accompanied by any
Power of attorney under which it is executed (if applicable) no later than 12 noon on 3 June 2013.
4. A corporation must execute the Form of Proxy under either its common seal or the hand of a duly authorised officer or attorney.
5. In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but the names of the joint holders should be stated. The vote of the senior joint
holder (according to the order in which the names stand in the register in respect of the holding) who tenders a vote in person or by proxy shall be accepted to the
exclusion of the vote of the other joint holder(s).
6. The ‘Vote Withheld’ option is to enable you to abstain on any particular resolution. Such a vote is not a vote in law and will not be counted in the votes ‘For’ and
‘Against’ a resolution.
7. Shares held in uncertified form (i.e. in CREST) may be voted through the CREST Proxy Voting Service in accordance with the procedures set out in the CREST
manual.
8. Completion and return of the Form of Proxy will not preclude you from attending and voting in person at the meeting should you subsequently decide to do so.
9. You may also vote your shares electronically at www.capitashareportal.com. If you prefer, you may return the proxy form to the Registrar in an envelope
addressed to FREEPOST RSBH-UXKS-LRBC, PXS, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham BR3 4TU.
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✃

Please trim along dotted line,
fold and insert into the
supplied reply paid envelope.
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HEADLINES
FINANCIAL
• Group like-for-like* sales, including VAT, up 3.9% (2011/12: up 12.5%)
– Like-for-like* retail sales up 4.1%
– Like-for-like* hire sales up 3.1%
• Pre-tax profit before exceptional items at £3.0m, an increase of £2.1m on the prior year
• EBITDA** of £7.9m (2011/12: EBITDA** of £5.8m), driven by improved sales and tight control over costs
• Underlying*** gross margin significantly improved in the second half to be only 0.2% below last year
(59.5% vs 59.7%), despite raw material cost price pressures
• Strong cash balance of £25.7m (2011/12: £23.3m)
• Exceptional credit of £0.1m comprising compulsory purchase compensation of £1.5m offset by an
additional provision of £1.4m against loss-making stores
• Basic earnings per share, on continuing operations of 2.43 pence (2011/12: 1.63 pence per share). Basic
earnings per share, on continuing operations, before exceptional items, of 2.24 pence per share
(2011/12: 1.63 pence per share)
• Final dividend of 0.7p, total dividend for the year 0.9p, up 125% on the previous year (2011/12: 0.4p)

OPERATIONAL
• Excellent performance from hire, despite a disrupted trading year, impacted by the Royal Jubilee and
the summer’s sporting events
• 14 stores refitted as part of the plan to refit 90 stores over the next five years
• E-commerce sales continue to grow strongly, up 54.3% with a new retail website launched in January
2013 and click and collect now available nationwide

CURRENT TRADING
• We remain confident that the business will achieve market expectations in 2013/14
• Sales in the first seven weeks of the new financial year are slightly below last year’s levels, albeit on
stronger gross margins. Like-for-like* gross profit in the seven weeks to 16 March 2013 is 2.4% below
last year. E-commerce sales are significantly ahead of last year
• Retail sales are on an improving trend following the poor weather conditions at the start of the year
• Hire boookings to date for the 2013/14 wedding season are behind last year’s levels, caused in part
by an increasing trend for bookings to be made later in the season. New initiatives on hire will help
mitigate any shortfall, including new product ranges and a new transactional website planned to launch
in H2 2013/14

*

Like-for-like represents financial information for stores open during both the current and prior financial periods and compares 52 weeks against
52 weeks, except for stores refitted in the period, where the period closed for refit is excluded from both the current and prior financial periods.
Like-for-like Hire sales are calculated on cash receipts in the period, before adjustment for the movement in the level of hire deposits held.

**

EBITDA is earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and exceptional items on continuing activities, and excludes the profit on
disposal of discontinued operations.

*** Underlying represents results before exceptional items as defined in note 1 to the Financial Statements.
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